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SENATOR JOHN J. HORN (Chairman): There are several 

Assemblymen rmd Senators who haven't arrived yet, but we 

are going to proceed. The sponsor of the resolution is 

not here and I had intended for him to speak first. 

Nevertheless, we ·are going to start • 

Assembly Concurrent Resolution 3011 directs the 

Senate and Assembly Transportation Committees jointly 

to study, evaluate and rePort on the adequacy and effective

ness of the Department of Transportation's policies and 

procedures concerning its application for, and its receipt 

and expenditure of, Federal aid for transportation projects. 

In ordar that we get the story firsthand, we are 

going to ask the representatives of the Department of 

Transportation to present their case first. Then I am 

sure they will respond to questions by the legislators. 

If you are ready, Commissioner Sagner, you can 

begin. 

A L A N S A G N E R: Thank you, Senator Horn, 

Assemblyman Esposito and Assemblyman Macinnes. I 

appreciate this opportunity to be here. I will read from 

my prepared statement, and I want you to note that I do 

have a number of inserts that are not in the printed 

text, which : think will amplify some of the points I 

will be making. 

This legislative hearing is the result of Assembly 

Concurrent Resolution Number 3011 1 introduced on February 

20, 1975, by Assemblyman Van Wagner. I would like to 

read some of the pertinent parts of that resolution 

which Senator Horn did not read. He read the introduction. 

The resolution states: 

"WHEREAS, The Department of Transportation, ••• 

is empowered to 'apply for and accept on behalf of the 

State any grants from the Federal Government or any agency 

thereof ••• and may comply with the terms, conditions 

1 



and limitations thereof, for any of the purposes of the 

department'~ and 

"WHEREAS, Substantial sums of Federal money --

including two billion dollars of previously impounded funds -

have been made available to the several states to facilitate 

the construction and improvement of highways and mass 

transportation facilities~ and 

"WHEREAS, Assertions have been made that the Depart

ment of TraP..sportation has not received or could not 

expend within the Federal time limits the maximum amount of 

funds available to it under the various Federal transportation 

programs, and further might be unable to meet the project 

eligibility requirements for any of the recently released 

money~ and 

"WHEREAS, It has been asserted that failure to 

expeditiously apply for, receive and expend the maximum 

amount of available Federal funds may be attributable to 

inadequate and inefficient policies and procedures within 

the Department of Transportation~ and 

"WHEREAS, As a State with the Nation's highest 

unemployment rate, a budget deficit of outstanding pro

portions, and 4 readily demonstrable need for improvements 

in its highway and mass transportation systems, it is 

imperative that New Jersey apply for, receive and expend 

on a timely basis the maximum amount of Federal transportation 

funds available to it~ riow, therefore . . " 

The rest of the resolution has been read. 

This resolution outlines four areas within our 

Department that seem to call for a hearing by this com

mittee. I wouJ.d like to point out that on March 20, 1975, 

I wrote a detailed letter to both Senator Horn of ~he 

Transportation Committee of the Senate and Assemblyman 

Esposito of the Assembly Transportation Committee fully 

detailing the nature of the federal-aid highway system 

and addressing the issues raised in the resolution. As 
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soon as I co~clude these remarks, Deputy Commissioner 

Carballo will fully explain the federal-aid to highway 

process. 

I wou~d like to address those concerns raised in 

the resolution. I believe they are areas which can be 

disposed of relatively simply, but I would like to stress 

that althougL we are aware that this hearing was called to 

determine areas of implied inefficiency and to probe 

the alleged causes of delay in highway construction, we 

have come here today not only to resolve the controversey 

surrounding those inquiries, but also to explain to you 

the intricacies of the operations of our department. We 

hope by the end of this session, you will have come to a 

fuller understanding of our philosophies and goals and 

will be better able to judge our performance. 

We plan to hold nothing back. We offer you our 

failures as well as our successes, our problems as well 

as our achievements. I have brought with me today members 

of my staff, all of whom will be available to provide 

you with i~formation on any aspect of the department 

you so desire. 

I would like to begin now with the first of the 

charges against the department. In reference to the 

statement that the $2 billion of previously impounded 

funds have been released and the implication that New 

Jersey will not benefit from that release, I restate 

today what I stated on February 11, 1975 when President 

Ford announced that release - specifically, that what 

some have characterized as the President's public relations 

gesture has distracted us from the real transportation 

needs of New Jersey and that we cannot, under the terms 

that were laid down by the President, benefit our program. 

It is our professional opinion, arrived at after 

much discussion with representatives of the Federal Highway 
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Administration. both locally and in Washington, and our 

Congressional Delegation, that the release of those funds 

will have a ~inimal effect on New Jersey due to normal 

red tape, processing, and unnecessarily long time frames 

mandated to fulfill federal requirements. Furthermore, 

the likelihood that the impoundment release will cause 

major changes in construction patterns is as improbable on 

a nationwide level as it is in New Jersey. An injection 

of new funds into programs which require continuity for 

their very existence, cannot magically revitalize them. 

To release an inordinately high level of funding suddenly 

without providing time for preliminary work, can effect 

only minima~ results. Moreover, the time limit of July 

for us to draw down these funds, which caused alarm that 

we would lose our share because we couldn't obligate by that 
• 

date, is moot. It has been determine and confirmed that 

this money is ours by law, authorized by Congress, and 

that we will spend every penny of it within the legal time 

provided by Congress for us to do so. 

Altho~gh the impoundment has been lifted, we still 

live with i'.:s residual effects. Impoundment has made 

many projects appear unreal. Programs which previously 

enjoyed continuity were interrupted. Approved projects 

were delayed due to a lack of funding. Then, when we 

were free to use impounded funds, we found we were blocked 

by new feder&l requirements which retroactively affected 

those approved projects. 

An example of the effects of impoundment, in Essex 

County, for example, is Route 280, which was completed 

with money that was available as far as the Stickle Bridge. 

Monies that would have enabled us to continue that road 

to Harrison along an approved corridor were held up by 

impoundment. rhen, when the new monies were available to 

us the next fiscal year, new federal regulations required 

new studies and held that project up the point where we 
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are still delayed. The combination of impoundment and 

inflexible after-the-fact standards was a great source of 

frustration to us, and I will give other examples of this. 

The second accusation - that the aepartment has 

not received nor could expend the maximum funding available 

to it under various federal transportation programs -

is again a greatly misunderstood premise. I read to you 

from a March 20th letter which I sent to Senator Horn 

and Assemblyman Esposito: 

"New Jersey has utilized every cent of federal 

formula funds made available since the inception of the 

federal high•¥ay program and not 'lost' one penny. 

Moreover, there is every reason to believe, barring Con

gressional changes in statute or any other unforesee

able events, that this will continue to be the case. 

"The federal-aid highway program is not a grant-in

aid program. No matter what this state did, it could not 

receive more federal-aid highway funds than are apportioned 

to it by stc.tutory formula." 

We have also been criticized specifically for not 

obligating all available funds for highway safety. I 

would like to address this criticism by explaining that 

much of the work we undertake to construct is done because 

its very nature is conducive to improving highway safety. 

The federal funds available to New Jersey under the 

special highway safety program total only $22.7 million 

over a two-year period. As indicated on the chart, we 

have spent more than $38 million on specific safety pro

jects in the past two years. The first line on the chart 

is the amount we have under the special program that was 

announced in November, 1973. We have $1,686,000 that 

will be obligated by June of 1975. By September, we will 

obligate $5,499,000. I cannot see the bottom line. 

SENATOR HORN: It says, two years, total 43 projects. 

COMMISSIONER SAGNER: In two years, we have completed 
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in the safety area forty-three projects that total $38,109,000. 

SENATOR HORN: Could I ask you a question? 

COMMISSIONER SAGNER: Surely. 

SENATOR HORN: When you say a two-year period, which 

two-year period are you talking about, because it looks 

to me, as of June 30, 1975, which has not arrived yet, you 

have only obligated $1,686,000? 

COMMISSIONER SAGNER: 1973, I believe, and 1974. 

The point that we are trying to make is that much of the 

safety work that we do, we have been doing out of regular 

categories and not out of this special safety category, which 

was not announced until November, 1973. It wasn't until mid-

1974 that it was decided that these funds would go to the 

Department of Transportation. There was an option in the 

State Administration for these funds to go to the Depart

ment of Motor Vehicles, which is also concerned about 

safety. And it was decided that the bulk of these funds 

would go to ~he Department of Transportation. 

What ~e are attempting to do is to channel most of 

this money through the local aid program, to use this money 

for small projects which are not eligible and do not 

require large s~ms of money, and to assist the counties 

in solving their safety projects. And that program has 

been underway now for the last year, and we will obligate 

all of the $22 million dollars within the time. 

Furthermore, the magnitude of those safety projects 

that we have undertaken, as shown on the next chart, 

would exhaust entire categories of the safety funding 

program were other federal funds not expended to provide 

capital needed for the improvements. This chart shows 

just how greatly out of proportion the highway safety funds 

are to the need for safety improvements. 

For excrnple, we put one project in. There is a 

category in t~e safety program for high hazard areas, 

and our entire allocation is a little over $2 million. 
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On one project on Route 21, we spent $3,150,000. Our plan 

has been, ra~her than take that entire $2 million and 

spend it on 0ne state highway project, as I said before, 

to take tha~ $2 million and divide it up among the 

counties in the State for many small high-hazard projects 

within those counties. This process takes time to work 

out with the local county engineers. 

The other categories -- for example, on Route 95, 

roadside obstacles - our total allocation or apportionment 

in that category is about $2 million; and on one project on 

Route 95, we spent almost a million and a half dollars. 

On Route 17, we spent $290,000 for a pedestrian bridge, 

a very important safety project, and that type of project 

is not even eligible under the safety program. 

SENATOR HORN: Assemblyman Macinnes has a question 

he would like to ask. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MAC INNES: Commissioner, are those 

statutory or Federal Highway Administration regulations or 

are those a result of the New Jersey State Plan, the high

hazard areas, for example? 

COMMISSIONER SAGNER: No, the safety program 

is divided into a number of categories, and the $2 million 

is divided among those various categories, according to 

a formula. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MAC INNES: What I am trying to get 

at is this: Is the $2 million that is available to New 

Jersey out cf the $21 million,or whatever it is, for high

hazard areas, determined by New Jersey or is that deter

mined by the federal government? 

COMMISSIONER SAGNER: It is determined by the 

federal government. In other words, we receive $21 million 

and it goes to a number of categories, and the amount of 

money in each :>f those categories is determined in the 

appropriation to us. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN MAC INNES: By the Feds? 

COMMISSIONER SAGNER: Yes. I want to repeat again 

that we think that better planning and better utilization, 

especially in ..,-iew of the fiscal problems that the counties 

have and the fact that we have been forced to curtail the 

entire State Aid Program, would be to channel this money 

into important safety projects in the counties to relieve 

some of the burden on them. 

In talking about safety, just for a moment, 

I would like to point out that the New Jersey safety 

record on the whole is a good one, and in the printed 

report I give aome statistics. The chart illustrates 

it. In fata~ities, we are among the lowest in the nation; 

and in fatal accidents, we are among the lowest in the 

nation. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MAC INNES: Isn't the low fatality 

rate a result of the low average rate of speed in New 

Jersey rather than necessarily being the result of any 

particular safety program we have? Aren't we, in terms 

of average vehicle speed, the slowest state in the 

country because of the density? 

COMMIS3IONER SAGNER: Well, we do have a lot of 

high-speed roads, Assemblyman. Despite thoughts to the 

contrary, we do have some interstates that are open. We 

do have some freeways that are open. The figures from 

the Turnpike are in here, as well as the Parkway, which 

are pretty high-speed roads. 

I agree with your premise,though, that the most 

important ingredient in safety would be speed. 

ASSEMB~YMAN MAC INNES: In fatalities. 

COMMISSIONER SAGNER: 

picture. 

Yes, and in the whole safety 

The third criticism mentioned in the resolution 

refers to, and I quote, "inadequate and inefficient policies 

and procedures within the Department." This is the 
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part of the resolution that hurts the most. I will say 

that the entire resolution -- and I will say this parenthet

ically and maybe off the record -- hurt, because I think 

we could have ~ad this whole inquiry in a different manner. 

I am again reminded of the quotation from the humorist, 

Pogo, who said, "I have met the enemy and they are we." 

But this one about the inefficient procedures in the 

department is the one that hurts the most. Until the time 

that I was fortunate enough to take this position as 

Commissioner of the Department of Transportation, I had 

a modestly successful career in business as a builder, 

and I, admittedly, didn't know too much about academic 

transportation theories when I took this job, but I did 

know one thing - I knew how to get a job done, and on 

time - becaP.se that is where the profits were. I believe 

that this criticism is certainly one that needs some 

explanation and some clarification . 

So let me take some time here to outline for you 

some of the reasons for delays that have become all too 

apparent to us in the past year and a half. Some are 

inherent in Uew Jersey Transportation bureaucracy, as 

in any burea•J.cracy, and others are imposed upon us by the 

Federal Highway Administration. 

Another personal remark I would like to add is 

that in the 27 years that I was in the building business, 

I often did millions of dollars worth of contract work 

with contractors with only a handshake. And it was a 

revelation to me to get involved in government and the 

federal bureaucracy where it takes us six months, not to 

get a job done, but six months - and that's a good time -

to draw a contract with a consultant to begin a project. 

But this is necessary when we are using federal funds 

and state funds to make certain that the public interest 

is protected. But this is a given that we have to 

deal with. 
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I would like to provide a bit of background, setting 

the stage as it was in January, 1974, when this adminis

tration first came into office. If you will recall, it was a 

time of mile-long gas lines, skyrocketing inflation, and 

a time when people realized that bountiful and cheap energy 

was a luxury of the past. Congress had previously foreseen 

these problems as real and had enacted the Clean Air 

Standards Act of 1970, which required that each state 

have a State Implementation Plan which would establish 

acceptable levels of pollution. 

The element of the State Implementation Plan which 

relates to transportation is the requirement for a 

Transportation Control Plan which sets standards of 

allowable emissions as well as various strategies to 

achieve them. New Jersey did not meet the August 1973 

deadline to establish a Transportation Control Plan of 

its own~ therefore, the Federal Environmental Protection 

Agency imposed one upon us in November 1973. 

The stan&ard of allowable pollutants called for 

under this plan imposed on New Jersey was for a 67 percent 

reduction in hydrocarbons in the Tri-State area, the 

northern part of the State, and a 47 percent reduction in the 

Camden area. This translates into various strategies, 

which include car-pooling, conversion from heavy truck usage, 

stricter automobile inspection, and, what is most important 

to this inquiry, over-all reductions in vehicle miles 

traveled by 58 percent in the Tri-State region and 

15 to 23 percent in the Camden region. I cite all of this 

as an example of the climate which I inherited in January, 

1974, the height of fuel awareness. 

It was for this reason, therefore, that when this 

administration came in it dedicated itself to improve 

public transporation. It did so as a deliberate and 

philosophical outgrowth of public opinion and need at that 
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time. It was more than a liberal political reaction. It 

represented a commitment to conservation and long-range 

planning. James Gannon of the Wall Street Journal, on 

May 15th, last Thursday, cautioned national leaders in 

his article not to avoid difficult political decisions 

which are aimed at long-range economic solutions rather 

than interim short-term gains. He cited this type of 

political courage was lacking in England and, as a result, 

the British economy has never faced its real problems and 

is faced with a sliding economy which may have five to 

ten years of stagnation and unrest. This is certainly 

a course that we do not want to follow in New Jersey. 

Today, the Federal Energy Office continues to emphasize 

that the energy crisis is just as serious now as it was 

then. It was and will continue to be an opportunity to 

correct the historic imbalance in transportation modes. 

We came to this department and found, despite an 

energy crisis, a division of commuter services without a 

director and without sufficient staff to attempt to 

resolve the pressing public transportation needs of our 

highly-urbanized state. We concentrated on building the 

staff. Thro'lgh that effort, we were able to bring more 

money for ntass transit to this state in one year than 

New Jersey had received in the ten-year history of the 

Capital Assistance Program of the Urban Mass Trasnportation 

AdministratioD. 

Howeve~, our dedication to improved public transport 

was to make up for past neglect and did not mean ignoring 

the highway area and its requirements. That would have 

been asinine in view of the fact that 75 percent of the 

people today and in the foreseeable future will be travel

ling to work by private cars. 

In the highway area, the department had been 

without an Assistant Commissioner for Highways since 

July of 1973. The staff of the planning and highway 
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area had not bean strengthened to meet the increasingly 

complex processes required by NEPA nor to meet other 

requirements that have revolutionized highway construction. 

This next chart shows an effort we have made to 

increase the number of positions budgeted to do environ

mental work. We took office in January, 1974. The NEPA 

act was passed in 1970. Yet in 1971 and '72, in the Bureau 

of Economic k1alysis, there were three employees. In 

1973, this was increased to eight, which we found when we 

arrived. We have increased it to eleven, and we project 

by July of this y~ar to have twenty positions. We hope to 

have twenty additional people in environmental testing. 

So we will have a total of forty people, as opposed to 

sixteen that we had when we came here in 1974, and eight 

·that were in the department prior to that. 

Remember what we said about building a highway being 

an ongoing planning and development process, and you can 

see why we are where we are today. 

Our 1976 budget request for more planners to do 

environmental work, however, did not receive your complete 

concurrence. Planning funds are always unfortunately 

the first to go. We have requested $4,995,382 for planning. 

We received $3,739,944, a 25 percent cut. 

Let me continue to outline some additional reasons 

why New Jersey appears to be behind on obligating as much 

federal money as we would like: 

The relative stagnation of the public transit 

section of our department and the lack of buildup in 

planning and in the environmental area was a reflection 

of the essentially leaderless department which evolved 

from former Governor Cahill's primary defeat in June of 

1973. One of ·::he more acute consequences of the depart

ment's lethargy was the lack of a federally-approved Action 

Plan. This is an essential element. An Action Plan, which 

Mr. Keith Rcsser, the Director of Research and Planning, 
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will discuss later, details a step-by-step process through 

which every construction project must pass to be eligible 

for federal funding. Federal regulations required that 

there be an approved plan by November 1, 1974, but it 

was not until our administration gave the plan its proper 

emphasis tha~ we even began to develop one, and finally had 

it approved f~ve months late in April of 1975. 

I must emphasize, gentlemen, that this is not 

merely a question of collating and putting into print 

something that took so much time to do. The processes that 

are described in that book that are essential for us to 

be eligible for federal financing had not been thought out, 

had not been organized, had not been delineated and had not 

b een thoroughly understood between our department and 

the federal agencies and the community groups involved. 

It was for that reason that the report was not ready in 

time. 

That delay represents the failure of the department 

prior to 1974 to organize along lines needed to qualify 

for federal funds under current regulations. It also 

reveals that the department's philosophical bent at that 

time was not directed toward taking the steps necessary to 

develop and implement the required plan. Without this 

plan, the federal funding process could only be delayed 

further. 

Another point is that program development, such 

as the Master Plan, which is also essential for federal 

financing, is impeded by New Jersey's lack of coordinated, 

statewide planning. However, we have our hands tied in 

this effort since transportation planning without land-use 

planning is a tortuous and nearly impossible task. The 

state is desperately in need of comprehensive land-use 

planqing which will enable us to build transportation 

facilities ~hat link rationally-planned development. 

However, this government's ability to implement land-use 
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planning is equally frustrated by our archaic tax structure. 

Although this hearing is not called for the purpose of 

my delivering a commercial on tax reform, I feel obliged 

as the Tran8portation Commissioner to explain to you the 

difficulty of managing a state without a rational tax 

base. Municipalities cannot be required to follow regional 

or state land-use planning when they must rely on fiscal 

zoning, as they do presently, to develop revenues. 

Throughout the sixties and thus far in the seventies, 

planning has been strictly an intellectual exercise. 

Now it is be~oming recognized as increasingly essential. 

Although it is not totally comparable, our department 

employs some 170 planners while Pennsylvania has 250 

and New York 590. 

Our efforts to build our staff, both in depth and 

breadth, is slowed by budget limitations and by our 

inability to compete with salaries in the metropolitan 

area, both wi t.b authorities and neighboring states. 

The third point: Our system of highway funding has 

led us into bad habits that are also partly responsible for 

where we find ourselves today. Since 1968, New Jersey has 

relied on bond issues to fund capital construction programs 

for highways, avoiding the more thorough and complicated 

federal processes. Rather than teach the department to 

plan in accordance with federal regulations, the failure 

of the '72 bond issue only served as a setback to be 

overcome "next year." Because our ability to comply with 

the federal process was stalled, we unwisely attempted a 

1974 bond issue which also failed. I would like to point 

out too that we made every effort,because we felt those 

projects were needed, to sell that bond issue. And I 

would like to make note to those who are now complaining 

about the lack of work that there was not the wholehearted 

support of that bond issue by the construction industry, 

by business and by organized labor. I think they now realize 
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that and have joined together to form the Alliance for 

Action and perhaps will put the proper effort forth if 

there is another bond issue. In November, there is 

the possibility the State may well offer another bond 

issue authored by the Capital Needs Commission in the 

hopes of securing funds to continue statewide capital 

construction. Although I favor such a bond issue at this 

pressing economic time, I caution us not to repeat our 

past failures by attempting to fund with bond issues 

those programs which could be processed and funded out 

of federal moneys. However, on the bright side of a bond 

issue this fall, there are a number of projects which 

could be included which cannot be funded federally and, 

therefore, do not run contrary to this lesson. 

In discussions with my counterparts in other states 

which have been able to obligate impounded funds more 

rapidly, I find a generous state appropriation annually 

from dedicated gasoline tax or from the general budget. 

This gives those states the continuity needed for a 

sustained construction program. I have also found that 

these states follow, and have been following for years, 

the full federal procedures, even for all state-financed 

projects, sc that when impounded funds are released or 

the federal authorization is increased, they can shift 

state jobs to federal financing. 

In New Jersey in the past, this was not the practice. 

We have determined that this will be the practice in this 

department and all projects, whether they are going to be 

done with fejeral money or with state money, will follow 

the procedures of the Action Plan. 

New Jersey has not provided our department with 

such generous gifts, but instead has limited our budget 

and cut back on funding requests. Specifically, in order 

to balance our budget and finance projects that we could 

not possibly eliminate, we have had to curtail and 
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practically eliminate State aid to the counties and 

municipalitiea. If $12 million of capital were available 

for State aid in fiscal '75, 52 local projects that are 

ready to go to construction, amounting to $19.3 million, 

could be obligated immediately. We don't have the matching 

money because you don't have it to give to us. 

Each administration faces critical decisions in 

allocating,for specific use, the limited funds which the 

Legislature has appropriated. The previous administration, 

for example, tried to maximize its dollar investment in 

actual construction and it limited expenditures on 

engineering ~1d right-of-way acquisition. This resulted in 

visible improvements at the time, but produced a delay 

in the progress of future construction. In other words, what 

we saw last year in terms of frustrations and what we 

are seeing this year was the result of actions taken, or 

rather not taken, two or three years ago. 

Before I outline the steps we have taken to improve 

some of these problem areas, let me address the fourth 

and final point raised in Resolution 3011. That includes 

a reference to New Jersey's unemployment rate, outstanding 

budget deficit, and the need for improvements to the 

highway system, which seem in that resolution for some 

reason to be connected as an entry. 

I would like to make clear that were I to have 

available to me an unlimited source of funds for highway 

or mass transit projects without restriction or red tape, 

I would not i~vest one nickel of it on any project which 

had not been subject to the most sound planning and 

critical environmental testing procedures possible. All 

possible impacts of a project on the environment, the 

economy, the land-use process and the like,must be 

thoroughly analyzed and approved within all rules of reason 

before I would allow my department to undertake such a 

project. 
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Assuring that construction projects provide environ

mental compatibility is a commitment to which this department 

is dedicated. However, while I support new federal require

ments created with an eye toward protecting the environment, 

I will continue to fault the way the regulations apply 

to New Jersey by retroactively requiring additional studies. 

A major example of this is the construction of the 

easterly portion of Route I-195 between Route 527 and Route 

34. Despite a successful corridor hearing in 1959, an 

approved environmental impact statement in 1971, an FHWA

approved design phase in 1974, we cannot acquire right-of

way because new regulations have been subsequently issued 

which require new air standards and, therefore, make our old 

EIS invalid, and have returned us to the proverbial draw

ing board to reanalyze the impact of this project. We 

have learned to deal with federal red tape, but will continue 

to be frustrated by the bulk of delays and unnecessarily

wasted energies caused by retroactivity. We have requested 

the inclusion of "grandfather clauses" for certain regulations 

but, thus far. have been unsuccessful in persuading the 

federal officials to implement such a change. 

I would also like to insert in my remarks, Mr. 

Chairman, another area in which I am in disagreement with 

the orthodox environmentalists. There are a number of 

projects which now require an environmental impact study 

which do not have a major impact on the social, economic 

or environmental areas. And we would hope either through 

regulation of the FHWA or through Congress to liberalize 

the interpretation of those projects which require a major 

environmental project study. I am hoping we make progress 

in that area. 

I should also like to point out here that New Jersey 

is unique in its population density. It is the most 

densely populated state in the nation by far. We cannot 
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and should not, if we want to be objective, attempt to 

compare ourselves with other states in relation to highway 

construction. Our citizens are becoming aware and 

resistant to highway construction. The failure of 

the last two bond issuesdemonstrates that. Last October, 

for example, we determined that 29 projects proposed 

for state f~nding were eligible for federal aid. A 

requirement for federal aid is a resolution indicating 

local support. Only 21 of those projects, projects 

initiated by local county engineers, have received the 

necessary local resolutions of support. This represents 

$27 million worth of construction that cannot move out 

of the initia~ phases, despite the technical assistance 

and the proc~ssing that our department has provided. 

The communities are no longer unconditionally desirous 

of our building roads. 

I distributed in the packet today a clipping from 

Piscataway Township, in which they have rejected a 

$500,000 plan for the improvement of Stelton Road. I 

have a whole file of clippings of this type. 

Recognizing New Jersey's unique complexities, we 

have, nonetheless, begun to improve both internal and 

external communications and taken positive actions to 

speed the highway construction process. Briefly, I will 

describe w~at we are doing. 

Number one, we have identified a need for a project 

management system which would provide a better control 

on a project-by-project basis and improve our internal 

communications beyond the present level. 

Number two, in June, 1974, in conformance with 

federal regulations, we established an Office of Community 

Involvement to foster a better understanding between 

our department and the members of the communities affected 

by our construction. Despite statements by irresponsible 

columnists and equally irresponsible members of your 
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august body, this is not a public, relations gimmick. Former

ly at these hearings, engineers who had prepared the plans 

went out to discuss them with the community. Our experience 

was that animcsity was created, as these men who were 

competent in their engineering expertise told the community 

what they truly believed was best for them. That is not 

how you play the game today. By providing both an educational 

process and an automatic f~edback mechanism, we can 

effectuate changes without causing delays. The office 

provides a free flow of information, opportunity for true 

community input, coordination of activities between the 

divisions, and an ability to foster early identification and 

resolution of problems. By developing a scope of community 

needs at the beginning of a project, we can afford the 

community the opportunity to participate in the planning 

process rather than merely requiring them to concede 

what our engineers tell them. Unfortunately - and this 

is a small point, but I think symptomatic - the Office of 

Community Involvement's $11,500 budget request - this is 

for aids, for such things as tape equipment, slide equip

ment, mailing, etc, not salaries -was cut from $11,500 

to $4700 for fiscal '76, which can only detract from the 

operation of this office, one of our more successful and 

valuable in the department. 

Number three, we have also undertaken a number of 

industrial engineering studies to determine the most 

efficient means to streamline our engineering functions. 

Consequently, we will be better able to speed the highway 

construction process. 

Number four, to further improve communications, 

we have held informational sessions with local, state 

and federal officials. A recent all-day conference that 

we arranged with the Department of Environmental Protection, 

that was attended by Commissioner Bardin .md nK•, hm1 

developed better liason between our departments and has 
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greatly helped improve the internal operations of our 

department. 

Since this administration has been in office, we have 

been commended by the federal EPA for improving the 

dialogue between our department, the Federal Highway 

Administration, and the Environmental Protection Agency. 

We now meet ~egularly to head off problems before they 

arise. 

It is our opinion, Mr. Chairman, that as a result 

of these efforts, we will in 1975 obligate about $80 million. 

This represents the 1973 appropriation. We were looking 

forward in fiscal 1976 to obligating over $230 million, 

provided there are no new surprises for us. This will 

represent our appropriation for fiscal '76 plus part of the 

impounded moneys that were held back. 

I would like to conclude with a rather brief state

ment on my·view of this hearing. 

I believe that the attempt to find a "scapegoat" for 

the desperate unemployment situation in New Jersey, and in 

the construction trade in particular, in the operation of 

one branch of government borders on demagoguery. The real 

danger, however, is that this diversion turns us away, 

intentionally or otherwise, I don't know, from the true 

and serious problems facing our state and the nation. 

The situati~n in which we find ourselves today has deep 

roots. Among them are: the t~agic war in Vietnam, which 

aside from the human toll, drained our country of $150 

billion of material resources~ two, the ever-increasing 

demand of all segments of the population for a higher stand

ard of living, a bigger piece of the pie, a pie, however, 

which unfortunately is not getting any bigger in terms 

of satisfying everybody's appetite for better things. 

Too much of our gross national product pie is for waste-

ful military expenditures and boondoggles of various 

kinds. Three, the desire to postpone paying the bill 

for what we enjoy through an equitable tax system, both 
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at the state and local level~ the complete absence of an 

income' tax in New Jersey and the disgraceful loopholes 

in the federal system have resulted in devoting much of 

our wealth for non-essential, frivolous expenditures and 

an ever-increasing gap between the growing numbers of poor 

and the more affluent. The poor in our shattered cities 

consisting more and more of minority groups and the 

abandoned elderly have been neglected. This is where we 

could wisely s9end dollars and create jobs. And the 

fourth point, and one that is in the papers today and 

every day, is the pervasive corruption in every level of 

activity that creams off money that should go to help rebuild 

our society. 

We at the DOT will build in a proper and legal 

manner those highways that are essential and those public 

transportation facilities that are rational; but if we want 

to restore economic health in New Jersey, we must look 

beyond the DOT for programs that will provide for rational 

land-use planning, for an equitable tax program, and for 

moral behavior by those in government, labor, business 

and the press. Thank you. (See page lX for additional material.) 

SENATOR HORN: The only thing I can say with regard 

to those last remarks, Commissioner, is the old adage: 

A good offense is the best defense. But I can appreciate 

your concerns about the chaotic situation in this State 

relative to employment, especially in highway construction, 

and our problems with mass transit. Our bankrupt railroads 

are sufficient reason to call for this type of public response. 

I am sure that is the purpose of the sponsor of the 

resolution, who I see has arrived and has been here all 

through your presentation. 

There are several questionsthat I have, but from 

what you have said, it appears that youhave your Deputy 

Commissioner and your Director of Research and Planning 

with you to make statements and then you will be available 
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to answer any questions we may have. 

I wo~ld like, at this time, to give the sponsor 

of the resolutation an opportunity to be heaad. 

Before I do that, does anyone have any questions? 

COMMISSIONER SAGNER: Do you want to do that before 

we briefly explain to you the Action Plan? We can do it 

either way. 

SENATOR HORN: In all. fairness to the sponsor and 

in line with the courtesy extended to legislators, which 

doesn't happen too often, only when it is provided by 

other legislators, I am going to ask Assemblyman Van Wagner 

to make his case. Assemblyman Van Wagner. 

RICHARD VAN W A G N E R: Senator and 

members of the Committee, before I begin my prepared 

statement, in which I list some questions that I would 

like the Committee to raise and have answered, I would 

like to reiterate my motivation in asking for the study 

as set forth in ACR 3011. It was based not only on the 

fact that New Jersey is suffering from the highest un

employment rate, but also on the fact, as the Commissioner 

has stated himself, there seems to be on the part of many 

members of the Legislature and, indeed, perhaps even 

members of the administration, as well as the public, 

guestions as to the functioning of the Department of 

Transportation as it is now constituted in relation 

to its ability to obtain federal funds and its ability to 

complete within a reasonable amount of time those projects 

which it has started. 

It was wi·th this motivation that I introduced 

ACR 3011. T do not pretend to have the staff or the 

expertise to complete the kind of report or Action Plan 

as set forth by the department, the final draft of which, 

I understand, was completed as of April. I must, to 

be fair, commend the Department of Transportation for 

its action in completing such a plan because I think as 
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this hearing continues, perhaps the public will become 

more aware of the problems, not only of the Department of 

Transportation but the problems which the Commissioner 

mentioned which are related to other areas of concern 

in our State. In no way, do I feel that the Department 

of Transportation operates in a vacuum. I don't think 

any department of government today can operate in a vacuum. 

I am av1are that many of the problems faced by the 

Department of Transportation are related to problems of 

land use, environmental protection and the general State's 

economy. But I think this public hearing gives all of 

us the opportunity to lay to rest once and for all many 

of the criticisms that have been levelled and perhaps 

move New Jersey forward in the vital areas of mass 

transit an~ highway construction. 

For the reasons stated, I wish to submit a list of 

questions to this Committee for its consideration and 

I am sure during the course of this hearing many of 

these questions will be answered. 

It is my hope that the Committee will investigate 

and find the answers to these question and issue a 

final report of its findings. With the proper investi

gation and a sifting of the testimony that has already 

been given and the testimony which is about to be given, 

I believe that this issue will be resolved once and for 

all, and New Jersey will be able to move forward. 

There has been considerable discussion about lag 

time between planning contracts and actual work beginning. 

I have seen a flow chart which indicates approximately 

an 83-mont~ period between the inception of a highway 

program and the actual completion of the road. I think 

one of the areas that might be discussed with the Com

missioner 'Could be how we can shorten this lag time 

and where does it exist: 
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There has been considerable discussion about the 

use of consultants. I think it is important that a 

determination be made as to at what point the Department 

of Transportation uses consultants and whether there 

are any delays concerning projects by the use of con

sultants. 

In line with the use of consultants, the question 

might be raised: Can the department within its own 

ranks handle much of the work that is now being done by 

consultants? Commissioner Sagner mentioned the need 

for additional staff. If this is the case in order 

to implement the capabilities of the department, then 

perhaps the Legislature must address itself to this 

particular problem in terms of appropriations. It 

must, of course, keep in mind whether or not it would 

be a cost-effective program to pursue. 

A question that I have raised publicly and also 

at the informal hearing that we had prior to this 

hearing was: At what point does the DOT apply for 

90-10 funds? I see in the letter that was addressed to 

Senator Horn and Assemblyman Esposito there is a full 

explanation of the method and procedures by which the 

90-10 funds are requested. 

There is some question as to the relationship 

between the Department of Environmental Protection and 

the Depar~ment of Transportation. In his testimony, 

which I listened to carefully, the Commissioner indicated 

that there now has been created and initiated an on-

going dialogue between these two departments. I, personally, 

feel that this is perhaps one of the most critical areas 

in terms of completion of highway projects. 

I still think there has to be considered the amount 

of lag time that occurs between studies completed by 

both departments. I think a question that will be 

raised at some point by the Department of Environmental 

24 



Protection, itself, is the question of adequate staff 

within this department in order to complete these studies. 

Then if the Department of Environmental Protection 

submits a report on a Department of Transportation 

project stating that it is environmentally unsound, 

who determines whether or not the project will continue 

to its completion, and how long does it take to 

effectively work out a compromise? 

There is question relative to the purchase of equipment 

which has been raised in some areas. I think that could 

probably best be handled within the department structure 

itself, and I don't pretend to have the expertise to 

approach that question. 

There has been a great deal of criticism and question

ing as to the actual staffing of the department. Sometime 

last April, I believe it was, there was an announcement 

of a number of layoffs within the department. The question 

has arisen as to whether these layoffs occurred among 

the lower-level personnel while at the same time replace

ment at higher levels was taking place. If, indeed, 

a management plan has been instituted, then I think 

this question could probably be adequately handled. 

Let me conclude by saying this: There has been a 

great deal of dialogue in connection with ACR 3011, sometimes 

vituperative, concerning the ability of the DOT to 

function effectively. I think I would be personally 

remiss if I did not state here and now, as I have stated 

on the floor of this Legislature many times, that in 

introducing ACR 3011, there was no desire on my part 

at any time to imply any personal criticism. 

It cannot be expected that a Commissioner of the 

Department of Transportation, as massive as that depart

ment is, who has been in that position for less than 

two years, can be aware of and can be on top of processes 

which have been carried on over a number of years. I 
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think that was adequately said not only by myself but 

by many mer.lbers of the Legislature, both in this House 

and in the Senate. Perhaps this hearing and subsequent 

Committee investigation will lay to rest any future 

criticism. 

Whether or not the DOT is solely responsible 

for some of the problems that have been stated is 

certainly not what is at question. The fact is that 

the DOT is a very critical and important part of our 

State government and has served the public well. 

It is my desire to clear the air of the criticisms and, 

if these criticisms are unwarranted, I think that it 

is the Legislature's responsibility once and for all 

to assist the DOT and the people of this State, if 

that assistance is necessary. 

Thank you, Senator. 

SENATOI\. HORN: Are there any questions by any 

members of the Committee? 

ASSEMBLYMAN MAC INNES: I have one. 

Assemblyman, is it your understanding that the 

Department of Environmental Protection has automatic 

review over major DOT projects? I am asking this out 

of ignorance because I don't know myself. But that is 

assumed by your question. 

ASSEMBLYMAN VAN WAGNER: There does seem to be some 

evidence of interplay between the two departments. I 

think the Commissioner mentioned the fact that the 

Department of Transportation had, itself, initiated 

dialogue between the two departments, which would indicate 

that there is a degree of interplay between the two depart

ments. 

I have to agree wholeheartedly with the Commissioner 

in terms of the federal government. The Federal EPA 

has for sometime built in additional environmental 

protection standards, which in some cases negate impact 
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studies that have been al~eady done. Again, from my 

own experience in dealing with funding areas, the 

Commissioner is entirely accurate when he says in the 

area of impour-dment this is particularly damaging. 

When funds are impounded and during that time new 

regulations are promulgated, every impact study that 

has been completed by any department at that point is 

completely wiped out and new studies have to be initiated. 

So impoundment can have a very dilatory effect on all the 

work that is done prior to that point. And in this.instance, 

that seems to be the case. 

I have noted the Commissioner when he has testified 

in Washingtcn a number of times has brought this point 

across to the congressional committees; just recently, 

it was the Subcommittee on Surface Transportation. 

But in terms of the interplay between the Department 

of Environmental Protection and the Department of Trans

portion, I don't know specifically at what point in 

a project that interplay takes place. However, I think 

from the Commlssioner's remarks and some of the research 

that I have done on my own there is a degree of approval 

necessary at 'the Department of Environmental Protection 

level. 

SENATOR HORN: Any other questions? (No response.) 

Assemblyman, thank you for your presentation. I 

suggest you stay and listen to the rest of the Department 

of Transportation's presentation since we did cut them 

off to allow you to speak. 

ASSEMBL~~ VAN WAGNER: I intend to. 

SENATOR HORN: Thank you, Assemblyman. 

27 



COMMISSIONER SAGNER: For the record, Mr. 

Carballo, who is the Deputy Commissioner for Transporta

tion will now briefly explain the process for federal 

financing and how the appropriations system works. 

Perhaps he will be able to answer some of Assemblyman 

VanWagner's questions. 

MANUEL C A R B A L L 0: My name is Manuel 

Carballo. I am Deputy Commissioner of the Department 

of Transportation. I will be brief since a good deal 

of the material that I intend to cover has been presented 

in the letter that you have received from the 

Commissioner. Essentially, what I would like to do is 

explain in narrow compass the statutory framework in 

which we operate. 

The purpose of the hearing is to determine what 

can be done to increase the flow of federal funds to 

the State. By definition that means: what are the 

federal laws we are operating under and what are the 

federal con~raints? 

I think it might be well to begin by showing you a 

flow chart that was developed by the Texas Highway 

Department. The Texas Highway Department is considered 

to be one of the most efficient and productive highway 

departments in the country. Its flow chart calls for, 

from incept1on to completion of a highway project, seven 

years and three months' time. The chart, which I have 

here and will make available to the committee, is at 

least two yards long and itemizes the various steps in 

the process. The complexity has been increased 

substantially in recent years by a great deal of federal 

legislation i~ the environmental area. 

In 1966, the Congress passed a provision of law, 

commonly known as Section 4-F, which requires that, for any 

transportation project passing through a park or natural 

preserve, a study be undertaken to determine whether there is 
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any feasible or prudent alternative to passing through 

that park. Perhaps a classic example of how well

intentioned legislation can be turned into a fiasco 

by administrative determinations is the way in which 

this provision has now been applied to the construction 

of bikeways. We have been advised, within the last 

month, that, in order to construct a bikeway through 

a park, we must sul:mit an environmental analysis 

indicating that there is no feasible and prudent 

alternative to building the bikeway in the park, which 

is where we wanted to put it in the first place. That 

kind of interpretation of otherwise reasonable legisla

tion is definitely counterproductive and definitely the 

type of interpretation that has caused us great 

difficulty. 

Another statute was passed in 1966 which was 
l 

the National Historic Preservation Act. The statute 

itself refers to the preservation of historic and 

archaeological cites throughout the country as included 

in the National Register. Recently published federal 

regulations - again, an administrative action taken 

in December of 19 7 4 - have expanded the scope of the 

study required to include not only those cites that 

are included in the National Register, but those cites 

which are eligible for inclusion in the National 

Register. The determination of what is eligible 

requires archaeological analysis and evaluation of an 

extensive sort not contemplated by the statute but 

imposed by regulation almost eight years after adoption 

of the intial statute. 

The statute with which most people are familiar 

is the National Environmental Protection Act of 1969, 

NEPA. That was adopted toward the end of 1969, and 

initial federal guidelines and interpretation of that 

statute were issued in 1970. That is the statute 
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which requires the environmental impact analysis to 

which we frequently refer. The difference is in terms 

of the nature of the environmental analysis which is 

required. ~he 1970 NEPA Act was supplemented by a 

subsequent Clean Air Act in 1970 which requires an 

additional type of analysis. Subsequently, in 1973, 

requirements were issued as to noise controls and 

noise pollution that did not previously exist. 

As each of these regulations has been issued, 

generally speaking, there has been a failure to 

recognize, ir. the issuance of federal regulations, 

that projects can be quite far along and that we 

are required, by these regulations, to stop, go 

back, and redo an analysis that was previously done 

in full conformity with the environmental standards 

of that time. 

That entire picture is further complicated 

by the most rapid change in federal highway legislation 

and in federal transit legislation in the history of 

such legislQtion within the last two years. The most 

significant change was the Highway Act of 1973. What 

the Highway Act of 1973 did insofar as its impact on 

this State is rather substantial. 

First, the Highway Act of 1973 made it 

possible to transfer highway funds to public transporta

tion projects·> Second, the Highway Act of 1973 created 

rather major funding for a new system of roads called 

the "urban system roads." The important part of that 

is that it inserted a new requirement that there not 

only be local consent to Urban system mads, but that 

there indeed be local initiation of those roads. In other 

words, the initial request must come from the local 

jurisdiction affected. The significance of that is that, 

while, historically, federal funding has generally been 

most heavily in the interstate category, there has been 
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a shift in funding to t h e u r b a n s y s t e m - and 

rural categories. 

The urban system category becomes increasingly 

important to New Jersey. There is apportioned to it annually 

approximately $31 million in funds, and these funds 

will accumulate and not be disbursed unless there is 

local initiation of projects. 

The A c t, in a 1 1 o w i n g f o r t h e 

transfer of interstate funds to public transportation, 

has had an impact in terms of our trying to make a 

reasonable comparison of where we stand nationally in the 

interstate picture. The essence of it can be stated 

by saying tha~, if you are looking at what percentage 

of the interstate system we have completed compared to 

other States, the base has changed. For instance, in 

New Jersey, we have added mileage to the federal aid 

system. In other States, mileage has been deleted. 

In Massachusetts, for instance, there has been a 

transfer of approximately a half billion dollars from 

the interstate category to transit. That is one way 

to increase the completion of the interstate system. 

If you cut it. back, the percentage that is completed is 

clearly higher, and that has happened, and that has 

made it vezy difficult to make comparisons. 

There is, in the table now before you (referring 

to chart on display), comparisons in the different 

phases in which the interstate system stands, the 

percentages nationally and the percentages in New Jersey. 

You can see that, roughly speaking, New Jersey has, under 

construction or open to traffic, about 10 per cent less 

than the nation as a whole. On the other hand, the problem 

is in comparing what that means. When we took, for instance, 

interstate 278 and transferred it to interstate 195, which 

was done many years ago, we increased the mileage that was 

on the New Jersey system. Consequently, the numbers for 

comparison are very elusive. 
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On the next table, we also have an indication 

of how many additional miles of state roads have been 

put on the federal aid system. This is the basic 

precondition for making projects eligible for federal 

funding. We have increased the amount of mileage on 

the federal aid system dramatically. We have taken 

advantage of, basically, every new provision of 

federal la\'Y as quickly as possible. 

The other aspect of transportation financing 

which should be stressed is the difference between 

the highway program and the transit program. The 

highway program is a program which allocates funds 

to jurisdictions on a formula basis. In order that 

every jurisdiction may have sufficient time in which 

to appropriate those balances, the law recognizes what 

is essentially a three and a half year time frame from 

the date of allocation of funds to the date on which 

they must be expended or they will be lost. Consequently, 

when we received the fiscal 1975 apportionment, we had 

until the end of fiscal 1977 to spend it, and that was 

within the contemplation of federal law. To date, the 

State has expended all of those funds. The most important 

thing to state about the highway program is that the only 

way in which we can increase the federal dollars corning 

to the State is to increase the mileage on the federal 

aid system. Those steps have been taken. Everything 

else is limited to what that formula gives us, and 

we make use of the full amount of the formula allocations. 

The transit program is in marked contrast. The 

transit program was adopted in 1964 as a discretionary 

program. Actually, the area where you really have to 

work at getting federal money is the transit area, 

because, in comparison with the highway program where 

you know exactly what funds are available - essentially, 

you go with your application, and you say, "This is our 
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share and we want it" - in the transit area, there is 

no share. There is a national appropriation this year 

of one billion, one hundred million dollars for capital 

construction of transit facilities. New Jersey has 

received, and actually signed contracts for, $136 million 

of that. That is well over 10 per cent, w h i c h i s 

to say, we have done a remarkable job in drawing down 

federal funds in the transit area. One of those grants 

is for the acquisition of badly needed buses throughout 

the State. We expect to acquire between 1500 and 1800 

new and reconditioned buses. The other one is for the 

Erie-Lackawanna Railway and the acquisition of transit 

cars. We have, as you know, been pursuing aggressively 

the PATH extension project which, if approved, will 

bring almost $320 million of federal aid to the State 

of New Jersey which, if the project is not approved, 
' 

will go elsewhere. That is the basic distinction 

between the tranait program and the highway program. 

In the case of the highway program, if the money 

is spent within the period allowed, the money will not 

go elsewhere. It remains allocated to this State. In 

the transit program, if application is not made and 

pursued, the money will go elsewhere. 

That led, early on, to an emphasis within the 

Department, as the Commissioner has stated, on securing 

transit funds, and we think that we have been successful. 

I would like to address briefly some of the 

questions that Assemblyman VanWagner raised. 

The first question raised was with regard to the 

use of consultants. I think it should be pointed out 

that the initial decision to rely rather heavily on 

the use of consultants was made by Dwight Palmer many 

years ago with the initiation of the interstate program. 

At the time, it was a rational, well-considered decision. 

The interstate program, in 1956, was a program that had a 
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finite time frame. The federal law said that, between 

1956 and, probably, early 1970, the interstate system 

would be co~pleted. The decisio~ made then was 

essentially that, for a 14 year time period, it did 

not make sense to add large numbers of people to the 

state payroll, and, at the end of that period, lay them 

off because tne work had been completed. As I said, 

at the time, the decision was rational. 

It now appears and w111 continue to appear that 

the interstate program and other highway programs will 

extend indefinitely. Therefore, the case is now much 

stronger for the creation of an in-house capacity to 

do a good deal of the work that is presently done by 

consultants. 

On the other hand, areas will always remain 

where specialties are required. This is especially true 

in the environmental area. For instance, to undertake 

an environffiental analysis today could require 

disciplines as different and as difficult to find as 

archaeologists andmarine biologists, specialties in 

which there are a limited number of people nationally. 

In order to build a career civil service pattern for those 

titles, salaries would have to be set at much higher than 

their current levels, and the difficulty would always 

remain that the chain of promotion within, for instance, 

the Department of Transportation would be limited. At 

most, we probably could use one or two archaeologists. 

Therefore, that is an area in which we will always 

require consultants. 

The next question was the one about the relation

ship to the Department of Environmental Protection. 

Pursuant to federal regulations, the environmental 

impact analysis that is to be submitted is an analysis 

prepared by the State for the Federal Highway Administra

tion. That means that, technically, the environmental 
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analysis that we prepare is not ours; it is the statement 
of the Federal Highway Administration in conformity with 

the federal environmental laws. That approach has just 

recently been overturned in the Second Circuit covering 

New York, Vermont, and New Hampshire with the result 

that, as of today, there is almost no new highway con

struction going on in those jurisdictions. Congressman 

Howard has sponsored legislation which will make clear 

that the precess that we have followed during these many 

years is the correct process. It is the process that is 

being followed in New Jersey, and the legislation has 

passed the House of Representatives, and we have reason 

to believe that it will pass the Senate. 

If the Department of Environmental Protection 

reviews one of our statements and concludes that it is 

inadequate, there is also, concurrently, a review by 

the Federal Environmental Protection Agency. The 

decision as to whether that will deter the project 

from going forward is made by the Federal Highway 

Administration or, ultimately, the Federal Secretary 

of Transportation. The federal law requires that 

environmental impacts be considered, and I must underline 

the word "considered." After they have been identified and 
after they have been measured, the judgment can be made by 

the Federal Secretary of Transportation to proceed, having 

given due consideration to all of the impacts. 
Finally, there was a question with regard to the 

layoffs within the Department of Transportation. We 

considered those layoffs, to say the least, difficult 
and undesirable. The fact of the matter is that the 

reduction in force was in areas in which, due to the 

delay in highway construction, the personnel were excess. 

To be exact, the personnel were in the areas of highway 

inspection, that is, construction actually underway in 

the field, and right-of-way acquisition, and that, too, 

35 

\ 
\ 



requires ongoing construction projects. 

There have been additions in staff as the 

Commissioner pointed out. Among those have been 

additions in the community involvement area, which is 

essentially required by federal regulations, and in 

the environmental analysis area, which was pointed 

out earlier. Without those additions, we would never 

obtain the objective of being able to rehire those laid 

off. With the additions, we have increased the amount of 

work, so construction inspectors will have something to do. 

Before Mr. Rosser continues with a brief 

description of the Action Plan, which sets out the 

entire process in greater detail, I would be happy 

to answer any questions you might have. 

SENATOR HORN: Assemblyman Macinnes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MAC INNES: Mr. Carballo, I'm 

confused. I note that the Department is retaining 

people as environmental testers, presumably, to 

prepare environmental impact statements. Is it 

a fact that there is also the right of review by the 

New Jersey Department of Environmental Protection on 

major project3? 

MR. CARBALLO: That is correct. On a federal 

aid project, pursuant to federal regulations, the 

statement, as it is prepared, is submitted for comment 

to the State Department of Environmental Protection 

and to the Federal Environmental Protection Administration 

for their review prior to adoption of the statement by 

the Federal Highway Administration. It's an administra

tive requirement. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MAC INNES: So you have prepared, 

either by staff members of the Department or on a contract 

basis, an environmental impact statement which, before it 

becomes a document on which action can be taken, has to be 

reviewed by the New Jersey Department of Environmental 
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Protection and the Federal Department of Environmental 

Protection. Then it can go to the Federal Highway 

Administration, and the Director of that agency can 

decide whether the project should or should not go 

ahead. 

MR. CARBALLO: That is correct • 

ASSEI.ffiLYMAN MAC INNES: Is it specified, 

either in the statute or in regulations, the period 

of time which is permitted for that review by the two 

environmental protection agencies? 

MR. CARBALLO: No, there is no requirement. 

Basically, we have an understanding with the Department 

of Environmental Protection that, unless there is some 

unusual characteristic, i ts review will take no 

longer than 30 days. Generally speaking, it has 

adhered to that requirement. Basically, it's an 

administrative working arrangement that has been worked 

out between the two agencies. Obviously, we have no 

control over the Federal Environmental Protection 

Agency. 

ASSEMB~YMAN MAC INNES: Is the review by the 

Federal Environmental Protection Agency a source of 

delay? 

MR. CARBALLO: It can be. Very frequently, the 

delay comes from questions that are raised by the 

federal age n c y. For instance, if we have collected 

certain data for an analysis, the federal agency may say 

that additional data is needed before a judgment can be 

made. Then the fact is that the delay is, in effect, in 

two parts: one, they have asked us a question, and, two, 

we have to go out and collect the data. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MAC INNES: Are those documents, 

as developed, accessible to the public for its review 

and comment? 

MR. CARBALLO: Yes. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN MAC INNES: Is that in the form 

of a public hearing, or is that in terms of just 

being available in the file? 

MR. CARBALLO: The draft environmental impact 

statement is ~he subject of a hearing. It is made 

public, and there is wide circulation of it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MAC INNES: There are a number of 
\ 

projects ir. my legislative district which we have been 

trying to facilitate, and very often I find that the reason 

for delay is not so much because of the flow chart, but 

because of the fact that the State doesn•t have the money to 

proceed on projects which previously were funded by either 

state appropriations or bond issues. Yet, in the 

testimony of the Commissioner and in your testimony, 

there is very little mention made of the dollar 

shortage as a source of delay. Am I mistaken in my 

impression? · Are these just a couple of unique 

projects, or is this a continuing source of delay 

because we don•t have the funds to proceed without 

federal participation? 

MR. CARBALLO: The answer is a mixed one. 

There are a r-umber of projects that were originally 

proposed for full state financing which, because of 

federal regulations, can never be made eligible for 

federal funding. For instance, under federal regulations, 

if you have acquired the right-of-way for a project 

with state funds, but without having followed federal 

regulations, you are forever banned from getting federal 

funding for that project. Therefore, if there are no 

state monies for that project, that project cannot 

proceed. The Commissioner did address that in this 

respect: He addressed it in terms of that being, in 

essence, the policy of the past. What this State has 

done is this: Whenever it found itself in a hurry to 

get some work out, it relied on 100 per cent state 
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funding. In doing that, it bypassed federal require

ments in order to move quickly. The result has been 

all too often, especially in the types of projects 

that you haYe been talking about, that, in the move 

for speed, t~e projects have been made ineligible for 

federal funding. Then, if state funds are unavailable, 

the projects cannot proceed until state funds are made 

available. 

There are other reasons which we presented to 

the Capital Needs Commission which are also important. 

If one looks at a five year time horizon, there is no 

question that the level of federal funding that is made 

available to this State by federal formulas is 

inadequate to meet all of the highway construction 

needs of the State and that, indeed, some additional 

state funding is necessary. The Capital Needs Commission, 

I believe, recommended an amount in excess of $470 million 

for highway construction, and that would be for projects over 

and above the amount of money that would be available 

for federal systems. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MAC INNES: Are there any projects 

that could be done or started in the near future if we 

had the matching funds that are not being moved because 

of the lack of state matching funds? 

MR. CARBALLO: Are you talking about the federal 

aid system? 

ASSEMBLYMAN MAC INNES: I am talking about state 

matching funds for federally assisted projects. 

MR. CARBALLO: All of the federally-assisted highway 

systems with the exception of the small category called 

"rural secondary" are presently matched by state 

appropriations. The matching, at the moment, is not a 

difficulty. That is not true, I might add, in the transit 

area. We are now running short of state matching for 

transit projects. Basically, the only funds that have 
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been available for transit have been from the 1968 bond 

issue, and no additional state appropriations have been 

made. We are now in a position where new projects require 

either a new bond issue or a policy of state 

appropriations for matching. 

There are state matching funds missing in other 

areas. As the Commissioner mentioned, there are a 

large number of projects in the state aid categories, 

state aid to counties and municipalities, that are 

designed and ready to go but which require additional 

appropriations of state funds to match county and 

municipal funds. At the present time, we do not 

have suffici.ent funds to allow those projects to 

proceed. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MAC INNES: Are you able to 

answer whether New Jersey moves construction projects 

into federal assistance categories that are handled 

solely by state appropriations in other States? 

I have the impression that some projects which we 

place under various federal categories are projects 

which, in other States, because they have dedicated 

highway funds, etc., are handled by the States directly. 

Is that an incorrect impression? 

MR. CARBALLO: I think it is probably a correct 

impression in terms of continuing funding. The exception 

to that rule is when the State succeeds in getting a bond 

issue in which case there is a great deal of 100 per cent 

state-financed construction. Since this State does not 

have dedicated trust fund revenues, there is not a steady 

stream of regular annual appropriations for construction. 

For instance, in this year's budget, fiscal 1975, 100 

per cent state appropriations out of the regular budget 

were less than $20 million. As I remember, about 

$12 million of that was to pay past construction projects 

that had been undertaken by various authorities. So 
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there is a very limited amount of purely state-financed 

construction in New Jersey exc;::ept when there is a bond 

issue. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MAC INNES: So, if we had a steady 

source of annual appropriations for highway projects, 

then it would be possible to remove some projects from 

federal assistance in the future and have others totally 

state funded. 

MR. CARBALLO: That is correct with one caveat. 

There are, presently pending, regulations by the Federal 

Environmental Protection Administration governing what 

are called "indirect sources," that is, sources of 

pollution that include roads. The issuance of those 

regulations was postponed from January to July. It 

now appears that they will be postponed again until the 

coming January. If and when those regulations are 

issued, any private or public construction, whether or 

not there a~e state funds involved, will require a 

permit from the Federal Environmental Protection 

Administration. Translated, that means that an 

environmental impact analysis will be required for most 

major highway projects, whether or not they are funded 

with state ~onies. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MAC INNES: Thank you. 

SENATOR HORN: Assemblyman Esposito. 

ASSEtffiLYMAN ESPOSITO: You made a statement about 

the layoffs in the areas of highway inspection and right

of-way acquisition. What is the reason for this? 

MR. CARBALLO: Basically, what we did was project 

the amount of construction and the amount 9f right-of-way 

acquisition anticipated during this c a 1-

endar year. Based on those projections, it was 

apparent that there would not be sufficient work for 

those employees. What we did was this: We tried in 

every way possible to relocate those employees in other 
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areas within the Department where there was work and 

where there were people needed. For instance, some 

of the people who are going into the environmental 

analysis area are people coming from the right-of-way 

area. We have moved some of the highway inspectors 

into bus and rail inspections. Notwithstanding that, 

there were still a number of layoffs, which was 

regrettable. On the other hand, in terms of protecting 

the taxpayers' dollar, we didn't feel that it was 

warranted to have people on the payroll who were not 

engaged productively. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: I understood Commissioner 

Sagner to say that, in 1975, your Department is obligated 

to spend something like $85 million. 

MR. CARBALLO: That is correct. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Can you be more specific? 

MR. CARBALLO: In terms of which projects? 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Yes. 

MR. CARBALLO: We can submit to the committee 

a complete list of those projects. I don't have it 

with me. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: On one of your charts, 

you showed interstate mileage during the period 

of 1956 to 1973, and approximately 1400 miles were 

added. What has been added since 1973? 

MR. CARBALLO: Do you mean federal aid money? 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: I am talking about inter

state roads. 

MR. CARBALLO: On interstate roads, there has been 

no addition to the mileage in this State since the transfer 

of I-278. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MAC INNES: Assemblyman Esposito, are 

you referring to the federal aid chart? 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Yes. 
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MR~ CARBALLO: That chart refers to federal aid 

systems, not interstate only. The biggest factor in that 

growth has been the growth of the so-called "urban·system" 

category which fnciudes roads.primarily off the state highway 

system, ·principal arterial streets or county roads. For 

instance, Communipaw Avenue in Jersey City is an urban 

system street and eligible for federal funds. By placing 

a street like Communipaw Avenue on the federal aid urban 

system, we have made it eligible for federal funds. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Commissioner Sagner talked 

about a highway safety record which we should all be 

proud of. I am inclined to disagree with him, because 

I happen to come from Hudson County, and you cannot be 

proud of Tonnele Avenue, for instance. I think we have 

the worst safety record in the nation. 

MR. CARBALLO: I don't think the Commissioner 

said that we could be proud of it~ I think he said that, 

generally speaking, it is a good one. That doesn't mean 

that there is not a great deal of improvement needed. 

I think he was referring to things like the development 

of the Jersey Barrier which is a New Jersey invention 

and which has prevented accidents throughout the country 

and has been adopted by other jurisdictions throughout 

the country. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: I would like to know the 

status of the 109 Freeway project. It was supposed 

to alleviate the Tonnele Avenue situation. 

MR. CARBALLO: We will get you a status report 

shortly. 

SENATOR HORN: Thank you very much. 

COMMISSIONER SAGNER: Mr. Keith Rosser, Director 

of Planning, will now explain to you the flow chart that 

is the basis of the Action Plan. 
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K E I T H R 0 S S E R: My name is Keith Rosser. I 

am the Director of Planning and Research for the Depart

ment of Transportation. 

I would like to preface my remarks by stating that 

I have been a member of the Department of Transportation 

for 27 years, having joined the previous Highway Depart

ment in 1947. In that time period, spanning five 

Governors and five Commissioners, I have watched the 

evolution of planning requirements as they relate to 

highways. They were quite simplistic in those days. As 

a matter of fact, the same people located a highway who 

had designed it, and they also did most of the construction 

survey work. Since that time, with the advent of our 

concern for the environment and the energy crisis, we 

have sophisticated the process to the point that it now 

drags out the length of time required from conception to 

execution to anywhere from eight to 13 years, depending 

on the individual project and the problems we encounter. 

Early in the 1970s, I was a member of a Blue Ribbon 

Panel that was selected by the Federal Highway Administration 

to help implement a requirement of Section 109-H of Title 23, 

which was a mandate by the Congress of the United States 

to the Secretary of Transportation that he provide the 

Congress with assurances that all of the economic, social, 

and environmental impacts of any project undertaken by 

his Department would be adequately considered. This was 

a very difficult assignment, and our initial reaction 

was to develop technical guidelines that would quantify 

each of the impacts and set up standards and regulations 

for the 50 different States. We discovered very early that 

it was an emerging science~ in fact, it was still an art, 

and it was impossible to set up those quantified limits. 

So it was almost by default that we decided the only 

sensible plan was to have each State prepare for approval 

of its Governor a set of process guidelines which, in 
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essence, would say how that State Highway Department 

or Department of Transportation would provide to the 

Congress and the people of their respective States those 

assurances that were required by the Congress. 

The specific document that each State had to pro

duce was an Action Plan. I believe each of you has 

received a copy of our Plan. It spells out in detail, 

step-by-step, how a project evolves, what checks and 

balances are used, and which unit in our Department has 

the responsibility for each particular step. Since you 

each have a copy, I will not take the time to spell 

it out. However, to help stimulate some possible 

questions, I would like to run through, with you, some 

of the major components. 

On the board, we have a blown-up picture of 

chapter III, figure 8, which is a brief pictorial 

description of some 20 steps that are involved in the 

development of a highway project. Directly behind that 

exhibit in the Action Plan is figure 9 of chapter III, 

which indicates . a more detailed statement of these 

steps and shows the units in the Department that are 

involved in each as well as the entities outside the 

Department that may have an interest at each step. 

Basically, the process involves three overall 

steps. We classify one step as "system development," 

which manifests itself in the Department's master plan 

ultimately. The second step is the "location process," 

and the third step is the "design stage" leading to the 

award of contract. 

The systems process basically consists of the 

professional staff of the Department evaluating the 

demand indicators, such as population in numbers and 

dispersal, location of employment, location of 

recreational trips, and things of that type that indicate 

what the travel demand in New Jersey is at the present 

45 



time and wi:;_l be over the next 20 years. In addition 

to that process, which is done internally, we have in 

each of th8 urbanized areas of 50,000 population or 

more what wa call the 11 3 C process, 11 which is an 

urbanized planning process that is comprehensive and 

coordinated. This planning process does a similar 

task. By using census data as well as other data 

collection, they attempt to determine what the demands 

will be on our transportation system involving all modes. 

These agencies consist of not only state representatives, 

but also county and municipal officials. They set the 

policies for the region, and the staff prepares 

plans commensurate with those policies. With these 

inputs, the Department then prepares a draft master 

plan which, traditionally, we circulate to the 21 

counties, the major municipalities, the urban transporta

tion groups, and other interested citizens and the 

legislators. 

As a result of their review and completion of 

the accompanying questionnaire, the Department then 

refines its draft master plan, leading to a final version 

which is adopted by the Commissioner. It is from this 

document that the Department establishes its priorities 

and selects tbose projects which will come on line next. 

The next step in the process is to perform a 

feasibility study on an individual project. This is done 

basically to make a determination of public reaction 

to the project, what engineering problems will be 

encountered, what specific alternatives are available 

insofar as alignment is concerned, what the estimated 

costs of the projects will be, what the physical con

straints will be, and whether the project is in fact 

feasible. If, for instance, the highway project is 

determined to be infeasible, it is returned to 

system planning for evaluation by another mode. Possibly 
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the corridor could be best served by express bus service 

or a rail line. 

If, however, the feasibility study proves the 

project to be feasible, we then go through the next 

layer of checks and balances which is called "the 

project notification and review system." Locally, it 

is known as the "A-95 review system." This is a 

federal mandate in the Office of Management and Budget 

that the Department, as early as possible, when it 

intends to seek federal authorization of funds, will 

circulate its intent among the many clearing houses. 

In New Jersey there are 11 such clearing houses: the 

State, five metropolitan clearing houses, and five 

non-metropolitan clearing houses. The non-metropolitan 

clearing houses consist of specific county planning 

boards. 

The project is reviewed by these agencies to 

determine if it is in conflict with their plans 

and if it is in conflict with any other federal 

proposals whL~h will be funded by other federal agencies. 

These comments are returned to the Department and 

eventually to the federal agency which will fund the 

project -in our case, the Federal Highway Administration. 

The next step in the process is the corridor 

location study. The corridor location study is, more 

or less, a refinement of the feasibility study, wherein 

we take the various alternate alignments, we examine in 

greater detail the engineering concerns, and we prepare a 

draft environmental impact statement which is circulated 

30 days prior to the corridor public hearing. Based on 

the comments received from this process, we prepare a 

final environmental impact statement subsequent to the 

public hearing. 

It is in this area, as has been indicated by the 

Commissioner and Deputy Commissioner, where the greatest 
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growth in sophistication has occurred. As an example, 

there is, in Gloucester County, the route 55 Freeway, 

which is a proposed highway extending from the north 

side of Millville into the Camden area. In 1972, the 

Department prepared, and had accepted by the Federal 

Highway Administration, a draft environmental impact 

statement which described the specific environmental 

impacts that we could project if the highway was 

constructed. That document is this one (displays 

document). After we had received all of the comments 

from the public and had refined our estimates, we 

produced this week - it's been sent to the Federal High

way Administration, but it has not been approved - this 

document, which is the final impact statement (displays 

document). The growth from this (indicating first 

document) to this (indicating second document) is 

attributable to two reasons: 1) This one (indicating 

second document) contains every comment that has been 

made by the public or elected official relative to the 

project and our response to that comment, and, 2) all 

o f the new regulations that have been implemented 

since 1972. This is just an indication of how sophisticated 

the process has become. 

Following the public hearing and the approval of 

the final draft of EIS, the project is presented to the 

Federal Highway Administration for approval. Subsequent 

to i ts approval as to location, the corridor is adopted 

by the Commissioner. 

The next step in the process is the transfer of the 

project to our design forces. Then a very sophisticated 

process of 6esign with four specific phases occurs. The 

first phase is preliminary engineering, which is the 

development of 200 scale drawings -by that I mean, one 

inch equals 200 feet - which show the design concept 

of the project. This permits us to start the preliminary 
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process of acquiring permits. There are a number 

of permits that may be required by a typical highway 

job. These involve permits from the Corps of 

Engineers on navigable waters of title lands, by the 

Corps of Engineers on non-title navigable waters, by 

the Department of Environmental Protection on wetlands and 

stream encroachments, by the Federal Highway Administra

tion for any projects within two miles of an airport, 

etc. Each of these processes for a permit requires a 

complete review of the project by the agency involved. 

The next step in the design process is to 

hold a design hearing to review these schematics and 

to get approval from the Federal Highway Administration 

to enter into the final phases of design. There are 

three such phases, phases 2, 3, and 4 of the design 

process. The second phase develops 30 scale drawings 

in sufficient detail to permit the Department to 

develop right-of-way drawings. The third phase refines 

this pictorial view, and the fourth phase prepares it 

for advertisement, acceptance of bid, and award of 

contract. 

That is a rather hasty review, and I think I've 

exhausted the stenographer. I just wanted to try to 

impart how detailed an action is involved. At each and 

every step of the way, our Office of Community Involvement 

is relating the process to the community, to the 

citizenry, and receiving feedback which is then put into 

the process and refined. At several steps in this process, 

we are subject to litigation and extensive court battles. 

These delays, these feedbacks, and the series of recursive 

steps are the things that really cause the project to be 

delayed. It's not that it's sitting still~ it's just 

that it's constantly being refined. 

If we elect to fight at any point and reject 

these inputs, which is an option that we have, we might 

49 



lose the project, particularly in a court battle. 

It has been the Department•s philosophy that it is 

much better to negotiate a reasonable settlement, an 

amelioration of whatever impact people are concerned with, 

than it is to stonewall it and possibly scuttle the entire 

project. That period of negotiation does drag the project 

out. 

I would be happy to answer any questions you might 

have. 

SENATOR HORN: Are there any questions? Assembly

man Esposito. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: 

figure 8, in the Action Plan. 

how much time elapses? 

I am looking at chapter III, 

From phase 1 to phase 18, 

MR. ROSSER: That would vary. Based on our 

own personai experience, we have found that the planning 

phase itself, f r om ph a s e 1 t o ph a s e 9, c a n 

require, and does require, a total of about four years. 

We find that the design of a project requires, on the 

average, two years~ some of the more difficult ones 

can require three years. Concurrent with the latter 

stages of design, we start our right-of-way acquisition. 

On most complicated jobs, that right-of-way acquisition 

will require a minimum of two years. Since it is running 

concurrently, it is going to require four or five years 

to do the design and acquire the rights-of-way. Added 

to the four years to reach step 9, it•s up to about 

nine years. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: It 1 s about nine years, 

then, before you start to build the highway? 

MR. ROSSER: That•s right. 

ASSEMB~YMAN ESPOSITO: Don•t you think that•s 

where all our problems are? Do we need all those 

phases? Don•t you think it•s a waste of the taxpayers• 

money? 
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MR. ROSSER: There are elements in this process 

that are, frankly, offensive to me, having lived 

through the "go-go" years where we designed and built 

a highway within a period of two to four years. However, 

I realize t~e reasons why we have a process like this to

day, and those reasons are very valid. We have to pay 

the price. Most of this is dictated by either state 

or federal law. It's not optional~ we cannot short

circuit it~ we must do it this way. There is built into 

this process, in my personal view, some redundancy that 

requires time that we should not spend. Basically, 

though, I believe that this is a new era, it's what we 

have to live, we have to accept it, and the best way to 

go about it is in a very professional way. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Has anything been done 

about streamlining this process? 

MR. ROSSER: We have made attempts, as has been 

indicated here. Mr. Sagner has been to Washington on a 

number of occasions and has appeared before committees 

of the Congress in an effort to somehow streamline the 

projects so we can move much more quickly. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: With inflation, this 

lengthy process could cost you three times as much for 

a highway. 

MR. ROSSER: We have records indicating that. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: I think your Commissioner 

should continue going to Washington and find out why they 

cannot streamline this process. I think this is nothing 

but a roadblock to keep us from building the highways. 

SENATOR HORN: Mr. Rosser, I have a couple of 

questions relative to a locality that is parochial to 

me, Camden. I would like you to give me some kind of 

report on I-676. We met in regard to this a year ago 

February along with the Mayor of the City of Camden, 

his planners, and the people involved with this highway. 
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I might report to you that that is still a highway that 

goes nowhere. Could you tell me what the delays are? 

It was my understanding that, within six months, that 

highway would proceed. 

MR. ROSSER: Sir, I don't want to dodge bullets, 

but that one is not in the planning stage~ it's in 

design, and I am not familiar with the exact circumstances. 

SENATOR HORN: I raised the question to illustrate 

delays in highway construction and the problems that 

are created in employment. 

COMM!SSIONER SAGNER: Mr. Chairman, that is another 

example of impoundment. That whole corridor was designed 

and could have been completed at one time. The reason 

why part of it was not c o n s t r u c t e d i s t h i s: 

The money w a s_ impounded by the Nixon Administration, 

and work was stopped. While the work was stopped because 

there was no money, new regulations came out that made 

the other approval invalid. Possibly Jack Freidenrich, 

Director of Engineering and Operations can add to that. 

MR. FREIDENRICH: The combined corridor design 

public hearing for 676 is scheduled for this summer, 

hopefully by_ the end of June. One of the things that 

delayed the project beyond the earlier schedule is 

something that you heard about today, continuing 

proliferation of federal requirements which are retro

active. In this particular case, making the air quality 

study was an add-on that we had to address before we could 

complete all of the environmental concerns which must 

be ready prior to the scheduling of a public hearing. 

SENATOR HORN: I'll have more questions about 

that later. 

MR. ROSSER: There is one other thing that I 

would like to address myself to, and this relates to a 

question Assemblyman Macinnes raised with Mr. Carballo. 
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You have to bear in mind that there are some ten 

different categories of federal funds set up and 

established by federal systems. I know that Assemblyman 

Esposito is most interested in Tonnele Avenue. People 

in Bergen County are interested in the interchange of 

4 and 17. The 109 Freeway, which would be a reliever 

route to Tonnele Avenue, is on what we call 11 the primary 

urban extension system. 11 So is the interchange of 4 and 

17. About $12 million of federal money is annually funded 

to that system. It is estimated that the 109 Freeway 

will cost approximately $100 million. The reconstruction 

of the 4 and 17_ interchange in Bergen County will cost 

an estimated $35 million to $40 million. Each of these 

projects would wipe out the total state urban system money 

for the category therein for a period of four to ten years. 

Although we have federal dollars, whether or not the 

funds are adequate for a project depends on which funding 

category that particular project is in. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: In reference to the 109 

Freeway, can't that be tied in with the interstate system? 

MR. ROSSER: That is the plan we are studyi~g now. 

We are looking at the feasibility of, in essence, changing 

the system ~nd putting it into one where the funding might 

be adequate. Of course, in this case, it would be the 

interstate system. We are not sure how successful we'll 

be in doing that. 

SENATOR HORN: Thank you, Mr. Rosser. 

We will now take a ten-minute recess to give the 

stenographer a chance to relax her fingers. 

(Short Recess) 

53 



.. 



• 

AFTER RECESS 

ASSEMBLYMAN HORN: We will now hear from Jack 

Pearson, the Business ltianager of Local 82 5, Operating 

Engineers. 

For the reco~d, Mr. Pearson, would you mind 

giving your full name and title? 

J A C K P I E R S 0 N: I am Jack Pierson, Assistant 

to the Business Manager of Local 825, Operating Engineers, 

Newark, New Jersey. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HORN: Proceed. 

MR. PIERSON: Gentlemen, I am Assistant to the 

Business Manager of the Operating Engineers, Local 825 

and its affiliates and I offer this testimony on behalf 

of George Frawley, President and Business Manager, officers, 

and 10,000 members of our organization, their families and 

friends. All are citizens of the State of New Jersey and 

are vitally interested in your proceedings because it 

affects their very existence. They want you to know that 

they appreciate being given this opportunity to present 

to you a factual summary of the sad conditions of the 

Federal and Interstate Highway systems within our State, 

affecting not only our economy but also the progress of 

a well-planned method of automotive transportation caused 

by the inability of the New Jersey Department of Transporta

tion to make timely applications for Federal Highway Trust 

funds. 

We call this condition "the roads to nowhere", a 

black book of New Jersey's uncompleted highways. One 

hundred million dollars in State funds could today buy 

one billion dollars in Federal funds to complete the in

credibly neglected Interstate Highway system in New Jersey. 

New Jersey, today, is the land of highways to 

nowhere, vast and expansive stretches of concrete and 

steel that end abruptly at the edges of forest, decayed 
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urban areas and rivers. Hundreds of millions of dollars 

lie trapped in inert construction because roads and 

bridges are not completed and are useless. 

New Jersey is the most heavily traveled traffic 

corridor in the nation and it ranks 49th in the use of 

Federal funds for highway construction. Furthermore, the 

Federal money that is today available for highway con

struction will be gone forever in less than one year 

because of the State's inaction. 

I would like to make a point at this particular 

time. I am led to believe that the Department of Trans

portation has made application for all funds but I want it 

known and I wa~t it on the record that come next year and 

two years from now and four years from now and five years 

from now, we are heading for the same situation. We want 

it known at th;i_s time that we would like to have a month

to-month running record of what they are going to do, when 

they are going to do it and when the money is going to 

become available. 

If concrete plans to complete the Interstate 

system are not presented to the Federal Government by next 

summer, that money is forfeited and those broken highways 

remain monuments to disaster. If this money isn't applied 

for and if the money isn't used, we know that it will 

eventually go back into the Highway Trust Fund and other 

states can apply for the money and the State of New Jersey 

will lose this money. 

This situation exists at a time when the heavy 

construction industry is in worst slump since World War 

II, an artificially-induced slump caused by deliberate 

government fa.ilure to provide allocated funds. 

Unemployment in the industry is running 50% 

and worse, yet mototists are trapped for hours on smoking 

highways because roads that should be built are ignored. 
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Under the terms of the Federal Aid Highway 

Act of 1973, the United States Secretary of Transportation 

must remove from the system any uncompleted roads for which 

completion schedules are not submitted by July 1, 1975. 

The completion of these Interstate Highways could have been 

done for less than $800 million this year. It will cost 

a billion dollars next year. 

Every year, the people of New Jersey pay into 

the Highway Trust Fund - the source of this Federal funding -

up to $200 million. The State has been getting back less 

than a hundred million dollars a year. This attrition 

'Joes on whether or not New Jersey chooses to coraplete the 

job because any money New Jersey does not take simply 

goes back to another state. 

Some environmentalists argue that no highway work 

should be done before their full impact on the ecology can 

be studied, perhaps for another year or two. All the 

Interstate Highways were very carefully studied, at great 

cost, for their impact on the environment. In each case, 

their benefits were found to greatly outweigh any dis

advantages. 

Here is a roll call of the incomplete highways 

of New Jersey, which could be financed by available Federal 

funds. Gentlemen, I have a map and I think it would be 

to my best advantage and to your best advantage if we 

describe the roads that are uncompleted in the State of 

New Jersey, the amount of monies that are involved,and 

the sections that are uncompleted. Do you have the maps? 

ASSEMBLYMAN HORN: Yes, we have them. 

MR. PIERSON: By the way, it was through the 

Commissioner and his Chief Engineer that I was able to 

secure these maps and, gentlemen, it was through the 

Commissioner that I was able to secure the facts and the 

figures on each and every section of these roads that 

are uncompleted in the Interstate Highway Program. 
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On Route 76, where you have four tenths of one 

mile uncompleted, there is $4,700,000 to be spent to 

complete this particular section of road. 

On Route 78 there is, at the present time, 2.4 

miles in the New Jersey-Pennsylvania line area and $27,364,000 

to be spent on that particular section of road. 

On Route 78 in the Plainfield area - from Plainfield 

Avenue to Route 24 Freeway - there is $38 million to be 

spent on that particular section. 

Springfield to Berkeley Heights. 

That is the section from 

That is one of the few 

sections that is an uncompleted section of Route 78. 

Route 80 is completed. 

Route 95 - there is 19.4 miles from I-295 to 

the county Route 514 and there is $107 million to be spent 

there. 

On Rout.e 95 - 13.7 miles on the county Route 514 to 

I-287 and there is $95 million to be spent in that area. 

In these two particular sections there is $203 

million to be spent on uncompleted highways. 

On I-95 there is 1.7 miles from Route I-295 to 

South Broad Street and there is $20 million to be spent on 

that particular section. 

Also on I-95, 17.2 miles, county road 527 to 

State Highway 34 there is $65 million to be spent on that 

particular section. 

The total is $86 million to be spent on two 

sections of I-495. 

On 278, that particular area is completed. 

I-278 is up in the Elizabeth area where you come off of 

the Turnpike and that money, because of the problems that 

they had in that area with trying to get the right-of-ways, 

was diverted down into 195 and that section will probably 

never be completed. 

On 280. there is 2.6 miles to be completed. That•s 

the Stickle Bridge to Route I-95. There is $63 million to 
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be spent there. 

May I make an observation on this particular 

road in this area? Two months ago we heard from the 

Department of Transportation that this road had the go

ahead. Within "x" number of months - and this was all 

"paper talk" - this road was ready to go. Probably this 

road will take another five or six years to go because 

since this announcement we find that there have been homes 

built in this section and they have to destroy these homes 

and they may not be able to get the right-of-way for this 

particular section of highway to be built. 

I-287 has 19.8 miles from Rt. 202 the New Jersey 

line to the New York line and there is $246 million worth 

of work in that area. 

I-295 there is 7.3 miles from Rt. 130 to Delaware 

Street and $8 million. 

I-295 there is 2 miles from Delaware Street to 

Hessian Avenue and $17 million. 

I-295 from Rt. 130 to Custer Road there is $59 million. 

In all, on I-295, there is still $85 million 

to be spent on the Interstate Highway system. 

495, New Jersey Turnpike into the Lincoln Tunnel 

is 1.3 miles this is an expressway for busses, it is an 

express lane - I don't know when that is going to get 

started but from what I heard this morning, it is going 

to take anywhere from 4 to 9 years for a study and a 

completion. We may never get the Interstate Highway 

completed in the State of New Jersey. 

I-676, 1.3 miles from Atlantic Avenue to Route 

I-676 - $38 million. 

I-695 $15 million • 

I-895 - $37 million. 

In all, gentlemen, there is $882 million in work 

to be completed on the uncompleted Interstate Highway 

system in the State of New Jersey. 
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The question I ask -- We have, at the present 

time, 55% of our organization of capable operating engineers 

that do not wa4t to go on any kind of relief, that do not 

want food stamps, they don•t want hand-outs and they are out 

of work. I am asking the Department of Transportation what 

they are going to do, when they are going to get the system 

going so that we can put people to work from Local 825 and 

all the other Locals in the State of New Jersey. 

I also would like to refer to the construction 

of the Alfred E. Driscoll Expressway from the New Jersey 

Turnpike in South Brunswick to Roms Rive~ This would provide 

uswith a shore route, ending the traffic congestion that 

now makes week-ending at the shore a nightmare for most 

motorists. 

The Expressway is one of the most carefully 

studied highways, from the point of view of environmental 

impact, ever designed. It will privode a tremendous 

economic boost to the shore area. 

Gen~lemen, let me say this about the Expressway: 

This will cost, at the present time, $325 million. We 

have been in touch with the principals of the Turnpike 

Authority. This work-- There were 5 to 6 jobs that were 

bid on this particular Expressway. One job was already 

awarded and they gave this company somewhere in the area 

of $70 thousand for the engineering they did on the job. 

This job - or jobs - on the Driscoll Expressway 

could start within weeks if we could get the go-ahead from 

not only the Department of Transportation but from the 

Governor of the State of New Jersey. 

We need the work. We want to work. Please, I 

am a little emotional because we have many, many of our 

people out of work and I can•t see, during the months 

when we could have our people working, why they should 

not be working at the present time. 

Now, as far as the bond issue is concerned - the 

6A 



• 

Director mentioned something about the Highway Bond Issue 

going down the drain - yes, it was defeated but the Depart

ment of Transportation didn't do anything to help put this 

bond issue across. In fact, from some information I received, 

some people in his Department were against it. They went 

out and they were against this particular bond issue and 

they led the fight against the bond issue. 

Dedicated funds - I would agree with the Commis

sioner on dedicated funds. We should have dedicated funds 

for the highway work in the State of New Jersey - the gas 

tax, the oil tax, the license plate tax. These taxes 

should be dedicated funds and dedicated to the Highway 

Department. 

On the bill that you are co-sponsor of, Senator, 

we've had the meeting with the Department of Transportation. 

We are negotiating certain situations that you directed us 

to negotiate. We are somewhere in the final stage but we 

haven't come to a complete agreement. That is the Bill, 

3108, that confines the Department of Transportation to 

a thousand tons of material within a 5 mile radius and we 

are still working on that. I just want you to know this. 

What ~e want to know from the Department of 

Transportation is, what work is available now, or within 

the immediate future? 

I wo~ld like to thank you very kindly for your 

indulgence and I would like to turn this over to Leo 

Brach, the Assistant to the President of Local 825. 

SENATOR HORN: Thank you, Jack. 

L E 0 A. B R A C H: My name is Leo A. Brach and I am 

the Assistant to the President of Local 825 of the Operat

ing Engineers, George Frawley. 

I don't have a prepared speech here. I just made 

some notes,while Commissioner Sagner was adjusting his 

halo,to clarify some of his remarks. 
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First of all, the Commissioner was very much 

aggrieved over the fact that his Department seems to be 

the scapegoat as far as this economic situation is con

cerned. Well, maybe it is the scapegoat, and logically so. 

What the Commissioner failed to tell anyone here 

is the fact that this is where the money is available. 

This is where the money comes from. These funds have al

ready been put into the Highway Trust Fund, by virtue 

of the Federal gasoline taxes and their utilization in 

no way will affect the taxpayer through increased taxation. 

While the Commissioner was talking he sort of, I 

think, chided this particular resolution because he sort 

of implied that this committee would be running something 

similar to what has been going on in Washington for a good 

number of years. 

Believe you me, at the risk of saying that's 

true, I think the committee has accomplished much of its 

purpose through the resolution in that we are learning 

things today that we never knew of before. We have been 

sitting down with the Commissioner of Transportation for 

about a year, trying to find out what's holding up many 

of these projects that were cited by Jackie Pearson here. 

Without any reasonable explanation it has been 

a ping-ponging saying, "well, it is the Peds this~ we get 

this from the Peds~ it's the State's" and vice versa. But 

right now we are at least getting into the fundamentals of 

the Department and finding out what the processes are and 

what, in a sense, is going on. 

This, at least, will give us an opportunity to 

raise some questions and I have some questions as a 

result of that. One of them is this: While this presenta

tion was being made, there was very little reference made 

to the budgetary process - what has actually been included 

in the budget and what has been asked for. We learned that 

there is a formula of allocation, as far as the Federal 
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Government is concerned in connection with the Interstate 

Highway, where, after this allocation is made to the 

states, there is a three and one-half year period in which 

the state is protected for the use of these funds. What 

I would like to know is, at what step within this three 

and one-half year period is preparation made for including 

this in the budget process? Are budgetary requests being 

made? 

We must realize that this three and one-half 

year situation keeps on overlapping. That is, if funds 

are granted in 1972, the state has until 1975, plus six 

months to utilize those funds. If it is allocated in 1973 

then it would be 1976, plus the additional six months -

there is a constant overlapping. Yet, from the way I 

read the budget - at least the past two budgets - I 

find not only a failure to include funds to match the ap

propriations that are allegedly available, but also a 

failure to request any,and this is what bothers me. I 

think the failure to request, then, is directly within the 

Department of Transportation itself. 

Commissioner Sagner says he is a good business

man and he is looking to a profit. I think I have been 

trained as a businessman, although I have not been so 

successful as Commissioner Sagner. Nevertheless, I think 

I would put up $10 anytime to get $100 back in spite of 

the fact that there are many intervening regulations. I 1 d 

at least protect myself - hedge myself - to the extent that 

I 1 d make sure that a sufficient amount of money was ap

propriated so if and when you do overcome the regulatory 

mumbo jumbo, or whatever you want to call it, you are at 

least in a position to take advantage of the funds because 

you have met that particular requirement. 

Much has been said about the process of conception 

to execution. I think that is very well termed - that 8 

year space - because it is conceived and the execution can 
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be a very little one, where it is chopped off and it is 

dead. I 1 d like to see that terminology changed from 

11 conception 11 to 11 action 11 and the 8-year period, instead of 

flowing in a line-flow - in a domino fashion - stream

lined to the point where things can be run concurrently~ 

instead of making the flow 8 years, let•s try to make it 

4 or possibly 2 by doubling up these studies and have 

them run concurrently instead of consecutively. This 

could shorten much of the process. 

I think, too, the Commissioner might avail him

self of a better means of communication. If there is 

something holding up a project - be it Statewide or be 

it on a Federal level - he should manifest a spirit of 

cooperation by calling in labor and businessmen and 

telling them what the problems are so we can work on them 

together, to the point of accomplishment. In that way, 

each one will tmderstand what the responsibilities are 

and what the particular problems happen to be. 

The Commissioner and some of the members of his 

staff gave you the impression that it was our purpose to 

try to increase the Federal Interstate mileage request 

within a state. That•s far beyond our purpose because we 

are not looking to increase, we are looking to finish what•s 

been unfinished - the work that has been brought out by 

Jackie Pearson here and that you will see in the charts and 

the maps that were passed around. 

We have attempted, for a long time, to get many 

of these answers. I think what this investigation, as a 

result of the resolution, is accomplishing is, it is at 

least giving us a basis for asking questions and when you 

ask questions, I think, there is a spirit of togetherness 

and maybe we might be able to work things out. 

Thank you for listening, Senator. 

SENATOR HORN: Thank you. Are there any questions? 
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ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: One thing, for the record. 

You made a statement, Mr. Pierson, about Alan Sagner not 

pushing the bond issue. I can attest to the fact that he 

was the only man out there pushing the bond issue because 

he carne to Jersey City and Hudson County two days and he 

contacted every mayor in Hudson County eliciting support 

for the bond issue~ One day he did it in the rain. 

SENATOR HORN: Thank you, Assemblyman Esposito. 

Thank you, Jack. I will have some statements 

to make at the end of this meeting. 

Our next witness will be Frank Carroll. Mr. 

Carroll, will you please give your name, your title, and 

who you represent. 

F R A N K C A R R 0 L L: My name is Frank Carroll. I 

am the State Business Agent of the Amalgamated Transit Union. 

While we are concerned, Senator Horn and Assemblyman 

Esposito, I can also understand the worry and concern of 

the highway construction workers. We are concerned but 

not to the extent that they are. 

Two years ago when I sat here in this seat I 

could be a little bit more critical of the Department of 

Transportation than I can be today. While the present 

Department has only been in since 1974, we have received 

good cooperation from them. 

I have no literature except this letter and I 

was going to read it, however, since receiving the letter 

I spoke with the Commissioner and our International Vice 

President and he tells me that this letter is obsolete 

now. 

We do have much to be concerned about. However, 

as you remember, back in February we were told that we 

could very easily go out of business unless a subsidy was 

forthcoming from the State. 

We were down here on February 27th. We walked 

through these Chambers and through the Chambers of the 
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Senate. It was late at night when they finally passed the 

subsidy bill that kept us in business. However, that bill, 

as I understand it, was only good up until June. So, we 

are concerned now about what is going to happen in June. 

At the end of this week I expect to fly over 

to Ireland--

SENATOR HORN: Stay out of Belfast. 

MR. CARROLL: I hope .when I am smiling at the 

Irish colleens I won't have to worry about going out of 

business back here. 

While we do get a subsidy, there are always matters 

that we worry abo~t. As an example, there was an article 

in the Union City paper - the Hudson Dispatch - where they 

claimed that one of our Assemblymen was addressing a group 

of independent bus owners and they were told that it would 

be much easier for the taxpayers in Hudson County if the 

franchises were taken away from the TNJ buses and given 

to the independents. 

Four of our business agents were down here 

yesterday, two of them from Hudson County, myself and 

our Vice Chairman, and we did talk with one of the Assembly

men from Hudson County and he immediately got on the phone 

and made some calls and he did relieve our minds to a 

certain extent. 

However, we do have these conditions. We are 

told that because we get a subsid~ where other independents 

have parallel lines they could take our lines away and 

let the independents run their operation. Of course the 

independents have a lower rate of pay than we do and it 

would be cheaper for the State. 

Let rr.e tell you, when you have something like 

300 employees in the Greenville Garage in Jersey City 

and have almost 500 in the Union City Garage, what are 

you going to do with these people when they take our 

franchise away from us? 
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Some of our legislators insist upon sponsoring 

bills allowing the boards of education to use their school 

buses for transporting senior citizens to functions, outside 

of school hours. We always had this kind of work. We 

have, today, many combination runs. These runs are worked 

in the morning rush hour and, again, in the afternoon rush 

hour, and they lay up during the day. 

In speaking with Commissioner Sagner, he stated 

that he would always like to see these buses used. We 

would too. We think that instead of letting the boards 

of education run these buses, our people should be given 

a chance to run these buses. We can employ more people 

and have a better understanding. 

As far back as 8 years ago, our union people 

went down to the Department of Transportation trying to 

get exact fare boxes for our buses. As you know, our 

people are harassed, the are robbed at gun-point, they 

have bayonets put at their throats and knives and every

thing else. We got nowhere. However, since 1974 Commis

sioner Sagner has gone to work on this and he just told me 

last week that the bids are in and the boxes are on their 

way. So, in one short year he has done more than the 

Department has done in the last 8 years. 

I don't know any more I can say except we 

would like to be assured that come this June we don't 

have to do the same thing we did last February - walk 

in the halls wondering if we were going to go to work 

on March 1st. 

SENATOR HORN: Thank you, Frank. I can assure 

you that I know the efforts that Commissioner Sagner put 

into getting the subsidies and I am happy to have been 

a part of that effort and I will continue to be a part 

of that effort. 

I also want to indicate to you that I have so 

far, with a lot of help, successfully blocked the legisla-
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tion that would provide for those unsafe school buses to 

carry adults and I will continue to use my efforts along 

those lines because of the interference with private enter

prise. That bill is in my committee for consideration. 

I might also say that I realize the problems 

of the buses. We are plagued in this State with 5 

bankrupt railroads, so this would just compound the problem. 

A lot of people don't realize the number of bus 

companies in this State. You can rest assured - and I am 

sure that Assemblyman Esposito will agree with me - that 

we won't stand by and watch a low-rated bus company put 

out of business a company like TNJ, with the kinds of 

services that your people provide. 

Do you have any questions, Assemblyman Esposito? 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: No questions. 

SENATOR HORN: Thank you, Frank, for coming 

here today. 

We have one more witness, Mr. David Hull. Will 

you please give your full name and the title of any 

organization you might represent, Mr. Hull? 

D A V I D H U L L: My name is David Hull. I am the 

New Jersey Director of the Institute for Public Transporta

tion, 50 Park Place, Newark, New Jersey. 

The Institute is a non-profit research organiza

tion which has been active in New Jersey in the field of 

transportation for the past two years. 

I would like to, first of all, complement the 

Joint Transportation Committee, under the leadership of 

Senator Horn and Assemblyman Esposito, for holding these 

public hearings. I would also like to complement the 

Department of Transportation, the Commissioner, the 

Deputy Commissioner; the Director of Planning and Research, 

and staff, on the fullest and best presentation to date 

of the workings of the Department and of the realities of 

federal and state funding. 
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This presentation is particularly useful because 

there has been a considerable amount of loose talk on this 

subject in one or two cases from the Department itself, 

but, generally, from other sources. 

I am not critical, however, of Assemblyman 

Van Wagner for calling for this examination into the pro

cedures of the Department of Transportation and I am 

certainly not critical of this committee for holding these 

hearings. On the contrary, only by full and open inquiry 

can the public be apprised of the realities of the situation. 

As a public interest organization, we have con

sistently worked for this kind of public airing of the 

issues. 

I would like to comment, and in deference to 

this committee I will be brief, on a couple of issues that 

have been brought up, however. I would like to agree with 

Mr. Carroll about the record of this Department in the 

area of public transportation, as compared to previous 

administrations. 

There has not been enough done to satisfy me 

and there probably never could be enough done to satisfy 

me, I have to be honest about that at the outset. But 

I think that important strides have been made and I think 

they need to be recognized. Acquiring those two grants 

per month are, of course, major accomplishments that 

dwarf the previous accomplishments in the public trans

portation area. 

The second thing I would like to address is 

the question of interstate freeways because I think we 

too often look at the inters=tate mileage and say, 11 okay, 

this is the mileage~ this is how much we need to complete~ 

this is the percentage we haven•t completed ... 

Mr. Carballo pointed out one of the complications 

of that,in that Massachusetts, by using Interstate transfer 
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provisions, deleted a number of miles from its Interstate 

system, applied that money to mass transportation projects 

in the Boston area and, thereby, has a better record of 

percentage completion of Interstate systems. 

I think that is not a bad way to go about it, 

I might add, and I think that there are Interstates in New 

Jersey that are eligible for that and possibly should be 

used in that way. 

I would like to try to make a distinction between 

some of those Interstates which clearly are the types of 

necessary, uncompleted lanes in our highway system, and 

those which constitute major new super highways and to 

which different criteria should be applied. 

The kinds of roads that fall into the first 

category are Interstate 676 in Camden, Interstate 280 

from Newark to Harrison and the section of Interstate 

287 around Morristown that was recently completed. These 

are the types of projects that, whatever one thinks about 

the conception of those Interstates a decade or more ago, 

are clearly links that need to be completed now. There is 

more damage being done - there was more damage being done 

on 287 by not completing it - then there would be by not 

completing theQ, and I think a concern over getting those 

completed quickly is legitimate. 

I might point out that the cause for delay, in 

many cases, has not been from not trying to move fast 

enough but from trying to move too fast and shortcutting 

procedures. I think this was pointed out in some of the 

testimony. 

The attempt to shortcut these procedures in the 

Action Plan, in the Federal regulations, etc., often 

lead to a project taking much longer, rather than less time. 

In many cases the problem in the past has been that the 

review process was not done properly. The public was 
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not consulted at times, when they legally had to be con

sulted, and this left the Department open to law suits and 

to rulings from the Federal Government which delayed 

projects much more than was necessary. 

So, I think that because most of these laws are 

legitimate and serve legitimate purposes and, so that that 

type of problem doesn't arise, I think the fullest carrying

out of the procedures in the action plan is what is approp

riate, rather than to attempt to shortcut them. 

I'd like to also say something about last year's 

highway bond issue in New Jersey. I was one of the leaders 

of the opposition to that bond issue for reasons which I 

still consider to be valid. In fact, I took a one-month 

leave of absence, without pay, from my job to serve as 

Executive Director to the Committee To Beat The Highway 

Bond Issue. 

I do not appreciate being confused with other 

people of the same last name and I do not appreciate 

charges that members of the Department of Transportation 

worked against that bond issue. I think I would be aware 

of anyone who worked actively against that bond issue and 

I can state, categorically, that no members of the Depart

ment of Transportation worked against the highway bond 

issue last year. 

I can also confirm what Assemblyman Esposito 

said about Commissioner Sagner's efforts in favor of the 

highway bond~issue. He traveled all over the State and 

spoke effectively in favor of the bond issue. I felt, 

in many cases, he spoke too often and too effectively 

in favor of the bond issue, from my personal prospective. 

But I think it is particularly unfair for him to be charged 

with not having supported something which he put a major 

effort into. 

I think, however, that the factis- and he indi

cates that he learned from that experience and from 
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the previous experience of the 1972 bond issue, which 

occurred in another administration - there is a public 

sentiment in this State about highway construction - about 

continued highway construction. I am not talking about 

these small, incompleted links, I am talking about major 

new highway construction. This sentiment has to be recognized. 

and it would certainly be appropriate for the Legislature 

and the Administration to recognize this in formulating any 

bond issues this year. 

This brings me to my final point- which is actually 

two points in a sense - and that is,the legitimate concern 

for jobs which has been mentioned here today. People 

representing their unions faithfully, as they must, speak 

with understandable feeling about the human tragedy of 

unemployment. I think we m~st, as a society, deal with 

the question of unemployment~ we cannot fix that problem 

on one department or, specifically, one area of one 

department - that is, highway construction - but we must 

deal with it in a much broader way. We must, at the 

same time, deal with it in a way which recognizes some 

fundamental realities. 

The prime fundamental reality I want to suggest 

we recognize today is that major highway construction has 

come to an end. I want to repeat that because I think 

there can be misunderstanding on this point. I am not 

saying that I wish that major highway construction would 

come to an end, although it is my opinion that the emphasis 

over the last 20 or 30 years, not just in New Jersey but 

nationally, has been too much in the direction of highway 

construction, as opposed to other elements of a balanced 

transportation system. 

I am really stating something else, something I 

percieve to be a fact of life, nationally, particularly 

in the more urbanized states, of which New Jersey is a 

prime example~ Highway construction - major highway 
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construction - has come to an end. It has been disap

proved by voters whenever they have been given an 

opportunity. It has run into local community opposition, 

in many, many cases,which has defeated it. And I think 

that if we are going to be concerned about getting 

needed projects done and providing jobs, we are going 

to have to provide those projects and those jobs in 

areas which the public will accept. For very legitimate 

reasons the public emphasis has switched, due to considera

tions of energy,of environment, of community disruption, 

to feel that we need to correct some of the mistakes of 

the past and build a more balanced transportation system 

in the future which focuses on a greater commitment to 

public transportation. 

That has begun and various efforts to advance 

highway construction through federal funding are continu

ing. In some cases I have differences with the Depart

ment of Transportation. I have often been critical of 

them in the past - they have been moving too far on 

certain of those projects. But I think we have to under

stand the fundamental realities which were well presented 

today in terms of the complicated Federal and State 

guidelines, which the Department of Transportation faces. 

I want to go beyond that to emphasize the point that 

whatever the Department of Transportation would choose 

to do, whatever a particular Commissioner would choose 

to do, they are faced with some basic limits and con

straints and the prime among those is that major high

way construction has come to an end. Thank you. 

SENATOR HORN: Thank you very much, Mr. Hull. 

Assemblyman Van Wagner, did you want to add 

any remarks before we call on the Commissioner to respond 

to some of these statements? 

ASSEMBLYMAN VAN WAGNER: Yes, Senator. I had 
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planned to make these comments before the last speaker but 

in light of the last speaker's remarks, I think they become 

more germane to the topic of this discussion. 

First of all, let me say that I think one of 

the things that has been accomplished today - as has been 

pointed out by Mr. Brach and several of the other witnesses 

who testified - is that, if nothing else, it has created 

a dialogue between a major department of government and 

many of those affected by its operations. 

I think that rather than reduce ourselves to a 

polarized situation between the question of highway con

struction and the question of public transportation, there 

is something that we, as legislators - I know the Commissioner 

and I discussed this when he was in Monmouth County campaign

ing for the highway construction bond issue, as well as the 

mass transit bond issue - all have to recognize within the 

State of New Jersey and that is, because of the structure 

of the State of New Jersey - and this, perhaps,may relate 

to remarks made regarding land-use and the necessity for 

a comprehensive plan in that regard - and because of the, 

for want of a better word, suburban sprawl that exists, 

it is almost impossible to create the kind of public trans

portation system that is necessary in the State without 

a comprehensive road system to provide feeder roads to 

those collection points, if you will, which will, in turn, 

provide the public transportation to the large urgan areas 

where most people work within the State. 

So, I think when we look at - and, again, I am 

sounding a note that was, sounded earlier in the testimony -

the overall question of transportation, whether it be public 

or highway transportation we can look at neither in a 

vacuum, as we can't look at the operation of the Department 

of Transportation, or the Department of Environmental 

Protection, or the Department of Community Affairs in a 
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vacuum. This is a total State operation, as is any 

master plan for developing public and highway transportation 

within the State. 

I think it is important, because of your leader

ship and Assemblyman Esposito's leadership in the area 

of transportation, that we make it a priority as we ap

proach the major concerns that we have to approach within 

this State. Regardless of, and not withstanding any 

other consideration, this State suffers,now, the highest 

unemployment rate in the nation - or close to the highest. 

It is our responsibility, within the State of New Jersey, 

whether it be in the area of public transportation, whether 

it be in the area of highway construction, or whether it 

be in brand new areas of endeavor that perhaps we haven't 

even arrived at yet, that we make sure as many of the 

people within our economy who need to work, work. That's 

what is paramount. 

I don't think it is important at this point 

whether they work in programs that are environmentally 

directed or whether they work in programs that are directed 

toward the improvement of public transportation. The important 

thing is that we get down to work and move this State ahead. 
I think the action of the Department of Trans-

portation in finally developing, from a fragmented set 

of circumstances, an Action Plan, is giving us the impetus 

to that direction. I hope these hearings are a beginning. 

I thank you for allowing my resolution to be brought to a 

public hearing and I thank you for allowing me to be heard. 

Thank you, Senator • 

SENATOR HORN: Thank you, Assemblyman. Commissioner 

Sagner. 

We don't want to turn this into a town hall 

meeting. We are going to let Commissioner Sagner give 

testimony in response to some of the questions that have 

been raised and then, Leo, if you want to respond, that 
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will be the end of the hearing. 

COMMISSIONER SAGNER: I would like to correct 

one point for ·the record. Assemblyman Van Wagner reminded 

me that, I think, in my written testimony I might have 

implied that the Action Plan hadn't been started until we 

took office. It was under way. Our people moved it to 

completion after it had lagged for some time. 

I also want to say, ·responding to Assemblyman 

Van Wagner, that I appreciate the opportunity to be 

here and, as I told him out in the corridor, his resolution 

gave us an opportunity, in preparing for it, for a period 

of self-examination. 

However, in responding to Mr. Pierson and Mr. 

Brach, let me say, first, that I appreciate the problems 

that, as leaders of their Union, they are faced with. In 

going into the hall and seeing a number of men who are 

capable and desirous of employment and not being able to 

find work for them, provides for a great deal of frustra

tion. 

I will say again, half seriously and half face

tiously, that if I thought by my resigning from my position, 

as requested by Mr. Pierson's President and by Mr. Marciante, 

I could alleviate the suffering, I'd be only too glad to 

do so. If any of those gentlemen have any specific ways 

in which my removal would expedite this process, I would 

carry out this commitment. 

As far as our communicating with Local 825, 

I would like to state for the record that it was at Mr. 

Frawley's suggestion that we arranged to have a meeting 

in which we did, in synopsis, what we did here today. 

At my suggestion, through Mr. Marciante and John Brown 

of the A.F.L., we have had two meetings in Washington 

with our Congressional delegation in which, essentially, 

we described the problems that we are now faced with and 

requested their assistance. 
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I would like to say that our Congressmen, 

particularly Congressman Howard, in his position as 

Chairman of the Sub-Committee on Surface Transportation, 

have tried to cut through some of the red tape and remove 

some bottlenecks that we think are not necessary. 

On a few specifics, just so we can set the record 

straight, there is an aritmetical error - one hundred 

million dollars would not buy one billion dollars, that 

is a ten-to-one ratio, roughly. The ratio, for most of 

the construction other than Interstate, is 70-30. 

The statement was made that the least we could 

do is to put the money in the budget. Now, I don't under

stand how someone could have such a complete lack of 

knowledge because we have never said that we don't have 

the money to match the federal funds that are available 

to us. In fact, I have always been very proud, under 

the fiscal strain and duress that our Legislature is 

operating under, that they have assiduously avoided 

taking that money,that is reserved to match federal funds, 

to use for other purposes. Even this year, the Appropria

tions Committee saw fit to appropriate for us the full 

amount of money to match the federal funds that had been 

appropriated for us by Congress. 

I did have a note here to ask Tim Hull to stand 

up. He is the tall one with the beard, who is my assistant. 

He is related to David Hull, the one with the mustache who 

works for the Institute for Public Transportation but, 

because we have civil rights and non-discrimination laws 

in the State of New Jersey, and despite all of my dif

ficulties with David Hull on occasions, particularly 

on the bond issue - he dogged my footsteps all around the 

State - I still think that I am entitled to hire his 

brother, who didn't go around the State fighting against 

the bond issue. 
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There are several more corrections I would like 

to make. I said this before and I am repeating it again. 

Somethimes I wonder what the purpose is of everybody pat

ting themselves on the back saying that things are 

explained,because when they are explained, people keep on 

making the same statements anyway. We will not - I repeat, 

"not" - lose the Interstate money. It will nd: go to another 

state. It is ours and we will spend it within the time 

provided by Congress. 

On the specifics - and I will just touch on a few 

of them- on Route 287, this project was prepared to go 

to contract over a year ago. Congressman Monroe introduced 

an amendment to the Highway Act requiring the state to do 

a study of other possible corridors and we have completed 

that study and we will be having a new public hearing. I 

can say now that instead of having one group in opposition 

to Route 287, as a result of having studied two additional 

corridors, we now have three groups in opposition to 287. 

On the question of Route 78, we had a public 

hearing. There were 300 questions and comments at that 

public hearing and we are required by law to respond to those. 

We have prepared our responses and we will be having the 

beginning preparations of the public hearings next month. 

On Route 78, at the other end, that is not 

completed because Pennsylvania has not decided where they 

are going to terminate on the other side of the river. 

The reason they haven't decided is they are in court with 

an environmental group and we cannot complete our section 

of the road until we know where to go. 

On Route 895, we have our section under design. 

We might have to scrap that road because we are getting 

signals from Pennsylvania that they are about to adandon 

the part on their side. We can't build - to borrow an 

expression- "a road to nowhere." 
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In summary, Mr. Chairman, I would say that every 

Interstate we have on our program is being pursued by us 

in accordance with the law and in the manner in which we 

are to pursue it. We will decide after we have had the 

public hearing and have heard from the public and are per

mitted to go ahead, whether or not we will go ahead or 

whether we will transfer that money to public transporta

tion. We have not reached any decision in that regard. 

But I would say that I would like some demonstration of -

if I am quoting directly - a deliberate government failure, 

or a deliberate step on our part not to proceed with these 

projects. Thank you. 

SENATOR HORN: I have a few questions, now that 

it appears all the testimony is in. I am curious as to 

some of the statements that were made today and some of 

the charts that were presented. 

I read some statements in the Currier Post 

Editorial, dated April 23, 1975, entitled "Tap the Road 

Funds" - and I would like some response from you on this -

which were relative to the auto safety of New Jersey. 

In the fourth paragraph of that editorial it 

reads: "According to the center for auto safety, New Jersey 

has committed only $94 thousand of the $7 l/2 million 

available to the State in the current fiscal year for safety 

programs, funded by the Federal Government's 1973 Highway 

Act. The report is based on figures provided by the Federal 

Highway Administration." 

Now, that, to me, would seem to run contrary 

to the charts that you have presented here today and I 

would appreciate some clarification of that situation from 

you. 

COMMISSIONER SAGNER: Senator, I am not re

sponsible for the editorial. I will be responsible for 

the information that we gave you on the chart. Tim Hull 

will put it up on the board and we will go over that again. 
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SENATOR HORN: While we are on that same subject 

there is another paragraph that refers to the hazards. It 

mentions a high hazard location program which is designed 

to identify and improve high hazard areas on Federal and 

State highways. It sets the Interstste system, with the 

states meeting 10% of the cost. There is $75 million in 

federal funds available. New Jersey's allocation is 

$2,043,952.00 and the State has not committed any of the 

available money. 

COMMISSIONER SAGNER: Senator, there are the 

numbers- the $2,043,952. We have the money. We have 

been spending highway money in other categories - urban 

system, primary system - for these large projects. The 

reason there is a discrepancy in the article that you 

read in the Currier Post and the million something - if 

you look at the other sheet--

SENATOR HORN: Are you telling me the state does 

now have the $2,043,952? 

COMMISSIONER SAGNER: We have the authorization 

to spend that money, yes. 

SENATOR HORN: The article only says that you 

have not committed it. 

COMMISSIONER SAGNER: We have not committed it, 

that's correct. We are committing parts of it now. When 

they said that we only spent $90 thousand, that was as of 

that date, and in Washington. As of this date, and through 

the local office, we will have obligated $1,686,000 and 

by the time that money lapses next year we will have spent 

all of that money. 

What we are trying to do is, instead of using 

it for large state projects for which we have other federal 

money, we are attempting, as I said earlier, to assist the 

counties in correcting their safety projects and do it on 

a number of small projects around the State. 

SENATOR HORN: The editorial, if I may continue, 
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indicates that the Safer Roads Demonstration Program -

this is similar to the two programs listed that I have just 

talked about - is restricted to roads constructed without 

federal aid, and that New Jersey has allocated none of its 

available $2,736,668. 

COMMISSIONER SAGNER: It's all the same story. 

SENATOR HORN: That would go with the unobligated 

balance of $21 million? 

COMMISSIONER SAGNER: That's correct. 

SENATOR HORN: I would also like some questions 

answered because in my area it appears that 676 is being 

held up because of environmental factors, as I understand 

the situation. The federal government has come along at 

a subsequent date, after the highway was started, with new 

environmental impact studies which are to be held. They 

were to be held last November - this was my impression -

and I don't know whether they have been postponed or not. 

I heard today - if I understood rightly - that they are 

not going to be until this Fall, which is another year's 

delay. 

I would like to know who does your environmental 

impact statements - is it in-house or is it done by con

sultant? 

COMMISSIONER SAGNER: Both, Senator. We do 

some in-house and some we do with consultants. 

SENATOR HORN: If you hire consultants, how do 

you categorize the consultants and on what expertise do 

you base the hiring of those consultants? 

COMMISSIONER SAGNER: Well, we have a consultant 

selection committee, consisting of people in our Department 

who have the expertise in that area. Consultants who think 

they are qualified present their backgrounds, their staff, 

their experience and this is evaluated by our consultant 

selection committee. 

SENATOR HORN: Do they operate under contract? 
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COMMISSIONER SAGNER: Yes. 

SENATOR HORN: Does their contract include a penalty 

clause for late studies or are they free to miss deadlines? 

Do we have a penalty clause? 

COMMISSIONER SAGNER: I cant answer that. I 

would ask Mr. Freidenrich, who is Chairman of that Committee. 

MR. FREIDENRICH: Senator, there is no penalty 

clause other than if a consulting firm does not produce 

and delays a project for no reason, other than his 

lack of performance, he would not receive another project 

from the department. 

SENATOR HORN: In other words, if his report 

was not sufficient for the needs of the federal government 

requirements, there is a penalty clause for that? 

COMMISSIONER SAGNER: He doesn't get paid. 

SENATOR HORN: That's a penalty. 

COMMISSIONER SAGNER: That is not the problem, 

in fact. The shoe is usually on the other foot. The 

delays are the result of a lack of coordination between 

our Department, the Federal Highway Department and the 

local D.E.P. This is a thing that we have been working 

on - the all-day conference that I described to you - where 

we are trying, with the D.E.P., the Federal E.P.A. and the 

Federal F.H.W.A., to set down guidelines. As a matter 

of fact, the consultant is penalized by the delays, even 

if it is not specified in the contrac~ because his costs 

go on and on. This is a complaint that we receive. 

SENATOR HORN: I would like your Department to 

provide to this committee a list of the names of your 

consultants on environmental impact statements so that 

we can determine whether a complete study was accepted by 

the Department for the Federal Government. 

COMMISSIONER SAGNER: We will supply you with 

that. 

SENATOR HORN: I would also like to get into 
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the bus situation. Your letter to me indicated there was 

$136 million to be spent for buses and railroad cars. Is 

any of that being spent in the State of New Jersey for 

purchase of these items, to create employment? 

COMMISSIONER SAGNER: We have not worked on the 

final specifications in the preparation of the bidding 

documents, Senator. I don't know if any of the industry 

in New Jersey will bid on those or not, either as prime 

or sub-contractors. 

SENATOR HORN: I have no other questions. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: There is one question I'd 

like to ask. The last speaker mentioned bus subsidy money 

being exhausted in June. 

COMMISSIONER SAGNER: That's correct. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: What is being done now 

for after June? 

COMMISSIONER SAGNER: Hopefully, we will have a 

new budget. It is nip and tuck though • 

from? 

SENATOR HORN: We are working on it. 

COMMISSIONER SAGNER: We might all be walking. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ESPOSITO: Where is the money coming 

COMMISSIONER SAGNER: As the old saying does, 

that is in your hands. We need a budget for 1976 or, 

worse than the buses not working and the A.T.U. not getting 

paid, even I won't get paid. 

question. 

SENATOR HORN: Are there any other questions? 

(no questions) 

Thank you, Commissioner. 

Mr. Brock, do you have any questions? 

MR. BROCK: I'd like to ask the Commissioner a 

SENATOR HORN: Sit down, Commissioner. You can 

stay right there. 

MR. BROCK: In your testimony, Commissioner, you 
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bring out the fact that some 21 out of 29 communities took 

advantage of the road programs and that 8 rejected the road 

programs. Then you make statements about the bond issue -

two bond issues being rejected by the public. From that 

you conclude that there is a reluctance on the part of the 

public toward highway construction. Would you, then, draw 

the same conclusion from the fact that many more communities 

have rejected bond issues on education? Would you then con

strue that the public is saying that education is on its 

way out? 

SENATOR HORN: I think you are referring to school 

board budgets, not bond issues. 

COMMISSIONER SAGNER: I don't think you can make 

that same analogy because I don't share Mr. Hull's complete 

view on the future of building highways, although I think 

there is a lot of truth in it and it is farsighted and 

something that union leaders should look into~ as to how 

they will provide work in future years for their union 

members. I mean that very seriously. 

I don't believe that the failure of the bond 

issue can be compared to the failure of school budgets. 

There are a number of other factors involved. I don't think 
this is the proper forum for us to go into those. 

I will point out to you, though, that in the same 

bond issue where the highway bond issue was defeated by a 

very large margin, the green acres bond issue passed rather 

haphazardly - and I will take responsibility for that public 

transportation bond issue - and received a greater number 

of votes than the highway issue. I think if we delude our

selves and do not want to face the possibility that the 

public doesn't want roads - or at least they don't want them 

in their community - we are not coming to grips with some

thing that we are going to have to deal with. 

SENATOR HORN: We will now hear from Mr. Pierson 

and then I will close with a few remarks. 
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MR. PIERSON: Thank you, Senator. I have just 

one last remark. The Commissioner stated that there were 

going to be hearings. I would like to know the time and 

the place of these hearings so that we can jam these halls 

and the Commissioner and I can work together. Thank you 

very much. 

SENATOR HORN: Thank you. I am sure the Commis

sioner will advise your large organization of these hear

ings. 

Thank you, Commissioner and Deputy Commissioner 

Carballo. 

I would like to commend Assemblyman Van Wagner 

for making this public forum possible. His resolution has 

cleared up a lot here today. I think this resolution will 

have a lasting effect on the line of communication that 

appeared to be lacking in the past between the D.O.T., the 

Legislature, the Federal Government, the labor unions in

volved and the citizens of this State. 

I want to thank all of the groups and you, Com

missioner, for coming here so well prepared today. I am sure 

that Mr. Pierson, Mr. Brach, and Mr. Hull are much better 

informed, as we are. Thank you for making all of these 

facts available to us and the Amalgamated Transit Union, 

who has a great contribution to make to this State. 

We will, in accordance with the resolution, be 

recording our findings and recommendations to the Legisla

ture. Probably through some Bills we may desire to recom

mend and adopt some of the recommendations that have been 

made here today • 

You can rest assured, Commissioner, and the rest 

of the groups that provided the information here today, 

that in the preparation of that legislation, you will all 

be a party to it. 

We will be making a final report and you will 

all be made aware of it. Copies will be presented to each 
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and everyone of you, and anyone in the public sector who 

cares to have one. 

If there is no one else who wishes to come before 

this committee today, I will declare this meeting adjourned. 

I want to thank everyone for attending. 

(Hearing Concluded) 
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INTRODUCED FEBRUARY 20, 1975 

By Assemblyman VAN WAGNER 

(Without Reference) 

A CoNCURRENT REsoLU'I'ION directing the *[Office of Fiscal Affairs]* 

""Sew,ate and Assembly Transportation Committees jointly* to 

study, evaluate and report on the adequacy and effectiveness of 

the Department of Transportation's policies and procedures con

cerning its application for, and its receipt and expenditure of, 

Federal aid for transportation projects. 

WHEREAs, The Department of Transportation, established pursuant 

to the ''Transportation Act of 1966, '' is empowered to ''apply 

for and accept on behalf of the State any grants from the 

Federal Government or any agency thereof ... and may comply 

with the terms, conditions and limitations thereof, for any of 

the purposes of the department"; and 

WHEREAs, Substantial sums of Federal money-including two 

billion dollars of previously impounded funds-have been made 

available to the several states to facilitate the construction and 

improvement of highways and mass transportation facilities; and 

WHEREAs, Assertions have been made that the Department of 

Transportation has not received or could not expend within the 

Federal time limits the maximum amount of funds available to 

it under the various Federal transportation programs, and 

furthermore might be unable to meet the project eligibility re

quirements for any of the recently released money; and 

WHEREAS, It has been asserted that failure to expeditiously apply 

for, receive and expend the maximum amount of available Federal 

funds may be attributable to inadequate and inefficient policies 

and procedures within the Department of Transportation; and 

EXPLANATION-Matter enclosed in bold-faced brackets [thus] in the above biU 
is not enacted and is intended to be omitted in the law. 
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21 WHEREAs, As a State with the Nation's highest unemployment rate, 

22 a budget deficit of outstanding proportions, and a readily 

23 demonstrable need for improvements in its highway and mass 

24 transportation systems, it is imperative that New Jersey apply 

25 for, receive and expend on a timely basis the maximum amowi.t of 
26 Federal transportation funds available to it; now, therefore 

1 BE IT RESOLVED by the General Assembly of the State of New 

2 Jersey (the Senate concurring}: 

1 1. The •[Office of Fiscal Affairs]• •senate and Assembly Tram

lA portation Committees jointly are• hereby authorized and directed 

2 to study, evaluate and report on the adequacy and effectiveness of 

3 the Department of Transportation's policies and procedures con-

4 cerning its application for, and its receipt and expenditure of, 

5 Federal aid for transportation projects. 

1 2. The •[Office of Fiscal Affairs]• •senate and Assembly Tram-

2 portation Committees jointly• shall report •[its]• •their• findings 

3 and recommendations to the Legislature, together with any legis-

4 lative bills which it may desire to recommend for adoption by the 

5 Legislature, no later than 45 days following enactment of this 

6 concurrent resolution. 
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ALAN SAGNER 
COMHISSIONER 

Dear Senator Horn: 

STA'1'E ,}1" :'~f~W .J.EHSEY 

DEPAI<T~: L.\ T OJ' Th.\1\ SI'OHTA'fJOl.; 

IC::JS P"-R~WAY AVDIUC 

TRENTON.N.J.08625 

' March 20, 1975 

Recent publicity has created a great deal of confusion and 
misunderstanding w·ith regard to this State's ability to use Federal Higlmay 
funds. In essense, what some have cha~acterized as a Presidential publjc 
relatj_ona gesture, has created a "red herring" to distract us· from the 
fundrmcmtal questions l-7e face in meeting the transportation. needs for the 
State o[ Nev Jersey. Decisicns made during the Nixon Administration 
regarding th~ impoundment of Federal higlmay funds, l-!hich have tine and 
again been found illegal by Federal courts, like other actions of that 
same Administration., linger on. The problem has been further comr-ounced 
by the ext1·ctaely complex nature of the subject matter Hhich has led us 
to hR~ty and ill-conceived conclusions that Federal funds would be "lost." 
It is the purpose of this letter to try to clarify the effect of the 
release of federally impounded funds by President Ford on the State of 
Nmv Jersey and assist you in your revie,., of the performance of the New 
Jersey Department of Transportation. 

I. The Effect of Impoundment and its Release 

During the Nixon Administration the President,·through his 
Office of Managcr.1ent and ~uci.get (mffi), "impounded" funds for a large 
variety of Federal progra•ns and projects authorized by Congress. In 
effect, the President suid that not,~ithstanding the fact that the 
Congress has enacted legislation appropriating fm•<.ls for such purposes 
as water pollution control and high\ray construction, that he l·Tould slo•~ 
the rate at which such funds could be expended on an annual basis and 
therebyeffectively reduce the Congressional l~vel of appropriation. To 
illustrate, where Congress said lie could have $:!.00 a year, 0!-ill would say 
we could have $50 a vcar for two years. This action immediately raised 
the question as to ~.,hether impoundment was legal. 

The courts have consistently concluded that the process of 
impoundment is illegal. Host rer.ently the Supreme Court of the United 
States in the parall.el cases of J.rain v, City of Ncl-r York, /173-1377 and 
Train v. Can-paign CJ ean \·Jater, 1/73-1317, ruled that impoundment of ~rater 
pollutfonCoi1trol funds ~;a;- illegal. More significantly, for our purposes 
in the high~.ray area, similar rulings have prevailed, although the cases 
have not ye.:: reached the Supreme Court. In fact, the timing of those 
rulings is quite revealing. 
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In Pebruary. in a speech before the K.anstis State Legislature, President 
Ford aimounced, almost as an afterthought to his prepc-ne.d text, his decision to 
release $2 billion of impounded federal higlmay funds. In \·Jhat can only be 
described as a remarkable coincidence, on ~he next day, the United States Court 
of Appeals upheld a low·er court determination that federal impoundment of 
highway funds was illegal. Shortly thereafter, the Supreme C,iUrt ruled on 
the water pollution cases. 

Those decisions have broad implications. Fundamentally, it now 
appears that the impoundment which .has slmved high~vay projects over these 
many years is illegal and will have to be totally abandoned during the coming 
fiscal year. The apparent time limits set on the released $2 billion are 
probably illegal. This fact creates· rather substantial opportunities for 
New Jersey to move ahead in a greatly accelerated highway constructi.on pro
_gram for essential projects during the coming fiscal year. 

Before passing to that question, however, it should be made clear 
exactly what the President's release on impoundment accomplishes .this fiscal 
year. After extensive discussions '\vith our state representative ofthe 
Federal Highway Administration (FHHA), \vho has been very cooperative '\·lith us 
in this matter th~oughout, and discussions in Hashington '\-lith our Congressional 
Delegation, it is our conclusion that the release on impoundment changes very 
little. Although the formal release of...$2 billion from impoundment controls 
occurred on February 12, 1975, actual guidelines for the release \vere not 
published by the FHHA until March 10, 1975 or received by this Department until 
Harch 18, 1975. Some clarification had been afforded prior to that time by 
exchange in correspondence betveen my Deputy and John Kessler, Federal High1-1ay 
Administration's Division Engineer for New Jersey. The exchange of correspondence 
is attached as Appendices A and B, and the recently issued guidelines as 
Appendix C. The entire picture can be summarized by saying, "The more things 
change, the more they remain the same." 

The question is then logically asked: \~ethe~ something has changed 
or not, how much highway construction can the State of New Jersey expect between 
now and the end of Fiscal 1976? In order to answer this question, a somewhat 
_detailed excursion into the mechanics of the Federal Aid High'\vay Program is 
necessary. 

II. The Nature of the Federal Aid Highway Program 

The Federal Aid Highway Program extends back to the 1920's. Its more 
modern manifestations, however, can be traced to 1956 when the essential frame
work of the interstate program and the Higlmay Trust Fund was established. 
Essentially two categories of federal high\oTay funds lvere made available to 
the states. The first of these was to construct the interstate system of 
highways. These highways are intended to serve national and regional 
transportation purposes and were initially justified in part by considerations 
of national defense. Although there is no formula which allocates a set 
amount of funds to build j_nterstate highways, the Federal government must 
approve the interstate system within each state. The Federal commitment is 
then basically to pay 90% of whatever it costs to build that sy~tem. 
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Comparative statements about how "successful" New Jersey has been in using 
interstate funds are therefore essentially meanin~lcss. If a project is on 
the interstate system and not withdrawn by subsequent federal legislation or 
by action of the states pursuant to the Federal highHay lavJS, it \Jill be funded 
and built. Hhat impoundment and other red tape restrictions have done is 
slowed the rate to \.Jhich it can be buil't. There h.:we been cases in which this 
State was prepared to advertise and aHard contracts to build portions of the 
interstate system and federal funds \Jere not made available during tha't year. 
They have ah1ays been made available in the subsequent yean;. 

It should further be pointed out that Ne'" Jersey, like other highly 
urbanized states, has encountered substantial difficulties in completing 
certain remaining portions of its interstate system. Indeed, not all portions 
of the interstate system as presently designated in the state may be completed. 
Which portions of the interstate system should be completed Hill be resolvi?d a~ 
a result of complete environmental impact analyses and after appropriate public 
hearings with the c01mnunities affected. 

The Department of Transportation takes as.its legal responsibility 
not only the construction of adequate transportation facilities, but as man
dated by State and Federal laH, the safe, decent and sanitary relocation of 
families displaced by transportation projects and the preservation of the 
environment. If at any point \.Je reach _the conclusion that any part of the 
interstate system cannot be completed \17ithin these constraints, He \17ill either 
transfer that segment to another highHay use (as Has done in the case of the 
transfer of funds from I-278 to I-195) or to public transportation projects 
(as authorized by the Highway Act of 1973). In no event will the funds be 
"lost. 11 · 

Notwithstanding all these constraints and considerations, New Jersey 
presently has either open to traffic, under construction or under design and 
acquisition of right of way, 98% of the presently authorized interstate mileage. 
This compares with a national average of 98%. A comparison of the amount of 
interstate highway work either under construction or open to traffic shaHs New 
Jersey \<lith a lml7er ratio than the national average. New Jersey has 78.7% of 
its interstate system either under construction or open to traffic \17hile the 
national average is 91% •. A comparison, hm.;rever, with interstate completion in 
urban areas of other states makes Ne\17 Jersey's performance far more creditable. 
Massachusetts, for instance, has abandoned almost $600 million worth of inter
state highway construction in the Boston area and transferred the funds to mass 
transit. In Ne\17 York State, a cross-Manhattan Expressway and a cross-Brooklyn 
Expressway were abandoned and the funds transferred to rebuild a new Hest Side 
Highway, a considerable delay in that State's program0~ Other examples in urban 

·areas aboundJ The District of Columbia, San Francisco, New Orleans, Philadelphia-
wherever there is an urban area -- major interstate construction has been slowed 
or stopped. \fuen it is recognized that New Jersey is essentially totally an urban 
area-- the most urbanized state in the nation-- New Jersey's accomplishments in 
the face of this situation, despite constant delay and dissatisfaction, are re
markable. 
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The second m:Jjor type of Federal highway funds available can be 
described as 11 formula funds." These are funds uhich are apportioned to each 
State based on certain statutory formula. The relevant formulas are outlined 
in Appendix D. Ne\v Jersey is legally entitled to these funds. It cannot lose 
them except tln~_ough ·a· p;~ss called ·'·1 l<1.p·:;c1tion. 11 Lapsation results \vhen funds 
which have been apportioned to a state have not been used \vithin approximately 
three years of the annual apportionment date. Thus, for example, funds for 
Fiscal·Year 1975 were 11 apportioned11 in December, 1973, and New Jersey has until 
July, 1977 (i.e., the end of Fiscal 1977) to spend these funds. Appendix E 
has a diagram \vhich might help in visualizing the process. 

Also attached as Appendix F is a table indicating the Federal fiscal 
year apportionments from Fiscal 196~ to the end of Fiscal 1975. 

New Jersey has utilized every cent of federal formula funds made 
available since the incc".ption of the Federal HighH<ry_l_'rogram and not 11 lost 11 

one penny. Hor~over, there is every reason to believe, barrinr; Congressional 
changes in statute or other unforeseeable events, that this will continue to 

· be the case. 

The Federal Aid High\vay Program is not a grant-in-aid program. No 
matter what this State did, it could not receive more Federal-aid high\·laY funds 
than are apportioned to it by statutory__formula. * Nor could it create ne\-1 
interstate segments beyond the national total of 43,000 miles or segments which 
do not meet the Federal criteria for the interstate system. 

Why, then, is there this continuous assumption that New Jersey is 
doing so poorly in the area of highway construction? \Vhy, then, is there a 
feeling that we somehow are not getting our fair share of federal aid? Why, 
then, has there been such an enormous tempest in a teapot over the federal 
release of impoundment? 

The confusion arises in the combined effect of the three-year period 
in which the State may act to use the Federal funds; a failure on the part ·of 
many to fully understand what the effect of impoundment is and was; and a 
.seemingly interminable series of delays and postponements in the construction 
of projects that some communities feel are urgently needed. 

Each of these deserves further elaboration. 

A •. Three Years to Commit. 

Federal law quite rationally recognizes that massive public works 
projects of any kind sometimes encounter delays. It also recognizes that in 
order to plan effectively, local jurisdictions must know what funds are available. 
In fact, one of the major justifications for the creation of the Highway Trust 
Fund was that it established a continuing, secure and foreseeable level of federal 
funding. It is for this reason that Federal statute (23 u.s.c .. 188 and 104) allows 
somewhat over three years lead time before any state loses the funds to which it 
is entitled by statute. The fact that funds are certified as available this early 
in the process, however, frequently leads people to believe that there are huge 

*There are some minor exceptions to this rule for small programs, such as 
bikeways and certain "safety" areas. 
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unexpended balances. which must be spent immediately. For instance, as of 
February 24, 1975, the state has "credited to its account" through apportionment, 
$461 million.** This amount, however, includes the amount apportioned for 
Fiscal 1976 (which we have until July, 1978 to spend) as well as all previous 
unexpended apportionments for Fiscal 1973, 1974 and 1975. Except under unusual 
circumstances, we cannot draw down the $155 million that is apportioned for 
Fiscal 1976 until July·!, 1975. They have yet to be matched "~<lith State funds. 
It is there so that we may plan against it. The public impression, nonetheless, 
is that somehow all of it should be spent within this fiscal year. Yet, until 
February, 1975, and President Ford's release of impoundment and recent court 
decisions, it was not allowable by executive action of the President. Of the 
$461 million apportioned to date, this State had been authorized to spend only 
$114 million this fiscal year. 

Well, then, now· that impoundment has been lifted by a total nationally 
of at least $2 billion, how much can be spent and hmv quickly? 

B. Impoundment. 

In order to answer the question of how much may be spent in the near 
future, it is necessary to look back a little at the past. As stated earlier, 
one purpose of the Highway Trust Fund was to provide some certainty as to what 
funds will be available. The effect of-impoundment was to defeat that purpose 
since, not\vithstanding statutory formula, the amount a state could spend Has 
governed by the ~vhim of the Federal executive. 

Impoundment had two insidious effects.· First, deiaying the rate to 
which federal funds could be expended {although in a manner calculated never 
to force any state to lapse its funds at the end of a three-year period), it 
served to delay moving projects to construction. This, in turn, subjected 
many projects well along in their design to new regulations and frequent 
·reanalysis along lines that will be discussed belmv. 

Second, and more subtly, impoundment tended to cut down on the size 
and speed of projects "in the pipeline." The previous State Administration, 
·in order to maximize the amount of actual construction undenvay, used almost 

.. all of the available federal funds for construction purposes and limited the 
amount of funds used for engineering and right of \·lay acquisition. This 
resulted in a very impressive record of construction achievements reflected 
in the table attached as Appendix G. Even that record, hm11ever, including 
as it does funds from the 1968 Bond Issue, showed a marked slackening off of 
activity from Fiscal 1972 to Fiscal 1973. 

Third, a number of projects have been brought through the design 
stage, in the Federal Urban Systems program. Hmvever, these projects cannot 
proceed without official local concurrence. In a number of projects that 
~--been requested by the l9cal engineer and other officials met with 
objections by citizens to the improvements and withdrawal of approval and a 
necessity for initiating the process over again in another location. In the 

**Includes $29.4 milliod in Highway Safety funds administered through the 
Department of Law and Public Safety. 
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last two years, 15 ?rejects were thus aborted. 

This· highl:i.g}•ts the probleu caused by Federal allocation of funds 
in categories. Hajor and ninc.•r categories of funding total fourteen. The 
inability to shift monies from the category ,,·here proj ccts are delayed or 
not v7antcd to those desired and ready has complicated going to contract. 

The problem was further complicated by the lame duck status of the 
Cahill Administration for most of calendar 1973. It is not an insult to the 
hard\vorking professionals of the Department of Transportation to say that 
following former Governor Cahill's primary defeat, the Department of Transportation 
stood essentially leaderless and Hithout direction from the top. A neH Admin-· 
istration beginning in January of 197/f in effect found the ship lying dead in the 
water. The last year has been spent "getting up speed." As will be discussed 
below, the prospects for the coming years are very good. 

C. Other Constraints. 

Perhaps the most frustrating has been the constant heaping of ne\·7 
requirements and criteria on the construction of highway projects and the 
attendant delay caused by retroactive application of these ne\v standards to 
projects already very far along. In Greek methology, Sisyphus was sentenced 
in Hades to the endless task of rolling-~a boulder up to near the top of a 
.hill and watching it roll doHn again so that he could push it up the hill anew 
'4ntil infinity. The professionals in the Department of Transportation must be 
developing a great deal of empathy for Sisyphus. Perhaps one of the clearest 
examples of this type of problem is given by the chronology for construction 
of the eastern portions of I-195 between County Route 527 and New Jersey 
Route 34. 

1. The Corridor hearing \vas conducted in December, 1969. 

2. An Environmental Impact Statement (EIS), in compliance with the 
regulations then current, \vas completed in the fall of ·1971. 

3. The EIS \vas approved by the Federal Highway Administration in 
November, 1971. 

4. Design t-1as initiated and the Design Public Hearing was conducted 
in March, 1973 with 

5. Initial design phases approved by FHHA in 1974. 

6. Notwithstanding this long history of analyses, review and 
approval, we are today prohibited from acquiring the right of tolay for this 
needed project because new regulations have been subseguentll issued with 
regard to air quality and we must once again reanalyze the impact of this 
project. 

We do not argue that we should fail to consider all relevant 
aspects of the environment and other economic and social factors. Congress 
4as enacted environmental laws to stop the continued irreperable damage to 
our environment and to our very society by the failures of the past and new 
£!Ojects should be required to meet reasonable standards and be subject ~ 
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considered public scrutiny. 

On the contrary, it is our position in the case of a number of badly 
needed highway links through this State, due consideration of these factors 
would result in the conclusion that th~se portions of interstate high,.,ray 
should be built immediately. The list includes, in addition to I-195, I-676 
in Camden, I-78 in Union County, I-280 through Harrison and the remaining 
portions of I-295 and ··Route 29 just southeast of Trenton. Thus, while we are 
proceeding to meet the nelo~ly imposed federal requirements as quickly as 
possible, we are also pursuing before Congress changes in federal legislation 
and regulations which Hould result in our being able to accelerate these 
badly needed projects • 

III. Prospects 

Against this background, one can no,., weigh what has been accomplished 
and what we expect to be able to accomplish before the end of Fiscal 1976. 
These projections are based on existinB lmvs and regulations. They assume that:_ 
no new Congressional enactment, j_mpoundnent or federal regulation will serve 
to delay \-That can be· done. Further, it is assumed that the decision holding 
previous impoundments illegal will be upheld by the Supreme Court. Based on 
those assumptions, in Fiscal 1975 this Department proposes to spend $79 million 
on federal-aid highway construction, right of way acquisition and necessary 
engineering. Our target for Fiscal 1976 is $140 million in Interstate ~ork 
and $90 in non-Interstate ,.,ork, for a total in Fiscal 1976 of $230 million. 
This rate of expenditure will approach the prior peak year of the Department 
of Transportation of Fiscal 1972 when a total of $236.6 million of work was 
done • 

It should be emphasized that in 1972 that total was attained through 
the combined expenditure of Federal-aid funds available and balances from the 
1968 Bond Issue. This projected expenditure for Fiscal 1976 is exclusively 
Federal-aid alone since the voters both in 1972 and 1974 defeated State Bond 
.Issues for 100% financed st9-te highw·ay construction. In other \vords, we will 
-be drawing dmm federal assis_tance faster than at any time in the State's 
history, moving quickly to utilize the impounded balances recently released, 

·and, through our commitments in Fiscal 1975 to right of way acquisition and 
engineering, laying the groundwork for similar achievements in Fiscal 1977. 
Not only will lve be bringing massive amounts of work out of the pipeline, 
:but we will be putting future work into the pipeline so that the current 
hiatus in construction does not simply recur t\iO years from now. 

The -magnitude of this achievement in the face of all of the new 
constraints faced by the Department's professionals is a tribute to their 
.ability and dedication. 

IV. Stimulating Employment 

The exact timing of this construction is critical in terms of 
relieving unemployment during this summer. Every effort will be made to 
_push forward .proje<;:ts to advertising and a\vard during the current construction 
-season. No false hopes should be raised, hm-revcr, that highway construction 
.alone will provide employmenf in the amounts needed this sununer. 
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But we do not do high\o~ay construction alone, and we should not lose 
sight of the New Jersey Department of Transportation's other respons~bilitics. 
So far, we have been discussing only higlmay construction. .. 

All the preceding fails to r~cognize the enormous strides taken 
during the past-year in the area of public transportation. Our interest in 
public transportation is not a simple matter of preference or philosophy but 
a recognition of a serious energy problem that faces this country. The cost 
of oil that is being consumed at present prices and quantity in the United 
States will cost this nation as much in foreign exchange as the Vietnam War. 
These dollars, all of which are going overseas, must be seen as a tax that 
prevents us from accomplishing vital programs for the future of this country. 
Only by shifting some of the trips to public transportation can a reduction 
in this deficit be achieved. New Jersey has received in one year, Fiscal 1975, 
more Urban Mass Transportation Administration (UMTA) funds than it ha~ 
received in all the 10 years from the inception of the IDITA program in 1964. 
Much of this money will be poured into the economy during this calendar year. 

The $76 million grant awarded to the Department for the acquisition 
of new railroad cars for the Erie-Lacka\·7anna Railroad will result in a con
tract award for over 160 new suburban commuter cars this st~mer. The $60 
million awarded to the Department of Transportation for the acquisition of new 
buses and the rehabilitation of about 5{)0 older buses will result in a con
tract for the manufacturing of over 800 nmo~ buses by this sunnner. Engineering 
design of right of way improvements on the Erie-Lackm-1anna Horris and Essex 
Branch will result in over $120 million in constructfon a\-lards during Fiscal 
1976. In addition, some early stages of construction should begin on the 
New York and Long Branch right of way improvement. Total New Jersey Depart
ment of Transportation transit contract awards in the rema.inder of Fiscal 1975 
and Fiscal 1976 \·Till exceed $300 million, 80% of \vhich \vill be FederaL In 
other words, our total capital program for Fiscal 1976 will be $245 million 
for transit and $230 million for high\vays, or $475 million. That is over tlvo 
times our previous record year. 

__ Moreover, in this ar:ea we are also refilling the pipeline. l~e have 
.sl,lbl!litted to the Capital Needs Commission our estimate of our transit capital 
needs for the coming decade. If this Committee recommends and the voters 
approve a major transportation bond issue during 1975, much additional work 
can be begun. 

All of this \-lill help increase employment. 
sufficient. Only the Congress can approve the amount 
turn around the economy of the nation and the State. 
stands ready to continue to do its share. 

None of this will' be 
of funds necessary to 
This Department, ho\·.rever, 

Respectfully yours, 

Honorable John J. Horn 
N.J. Senator, Dist. 5 
514 Cooper Street 
Camden, New Jersey 08102 

Alan Sagner 
Commissioner of Transportation 

be: Governor Byrne; Messrs. Kaden, Leone, Carballo, Goodkind, Stangl, Rosser, 
Freidenrich, Bridegum, Colanduoni, Snowhite 
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Mr~ John Kessler 
Division Engineer ~ 
Federal Highway Administration V" 
25 Scotch Road 
Trenton, New Jersey 

Dear Mr. Kessler: 

february 21 1 1975 

As we discussed in our meeting of Febnt::rry 18, 1975, the State requires 
some additional clarification as to the r:.r.ou'.'d rules for making usc of 
the newly released $2 billion of impounded .:.unds. Statements in the 
press appear to reflect considerable r:.:isunJ.c:·:standing of this action by 
the President at many levels. In order to : 'ot things to rest, therefore, 
it 1nay be useful to specifically pose some Ot''-'stions with concrete examples • 

First, let me thank you for your e>~ccllent cooperation during this period. 
ln particular, your clarification of the requ:f.remcnt that work be 
advertised and bids received within 45 days <.>£ approval is very helpful. 

1. Does the President's action indicate nny relaxation or intent 
to revise regulations issued pursuant to the National Environmental 
Protection Act in a manner which will allow projects in New Jersey to 
proceed at a faster pace? 

2. If the only criteria for approval by the Federal Highway Administration 
of projects is the project's ability to gen~rate employment in the area of 
unemployment and our ability to get it to contract quickly, we have $248 million 
in projects designed which are essentially cotr_plete, and right of way, lltilere 
necessary, has been acquired. Are other cr:J.teria suspended or waived? 

3. Does the impoundment release mean thnt funds can be used across 
eystems other than as is presently provided by statute? 

4. In the case of a transfer of highway funds to public transportation 
projects, does the 45-day constraint st:lll apply and does. the acquisition of 
buses or rolling stock constitute "construction?" 

5. No~ithstanding the effect of the release of obligational authority 
and its recall by Federal Highway Administration into a central national 11pool," 
is New Jersey correct in assuming that the State could only actually lose 
lecleral funds appropriated to it by the "lapsation" provisions of Title 23! 
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I would also like to confirm our unde:rc ;- c.;iding that you are prepared to 
review certain projects for inclusion f";: Federal-aid funding which 
previously would have been considered '': intcnance. 11 Such projects are 
in the process of being sent to you. 

thank you beforehand for your kind COD;[=~~ · ··• tion. 

Cordially, 

~" ·.? '/1/'i:,~~a.cc.i /;<, /.-'7'1"~'\ ~ ,_(,~._;~,c,v 

1 Manuel Carballo 
' Deputy Commissioner 

ec: \bommissioner Sagner 

bee: J. Freidenrich 
K. Rosser 

1.::.::..·. ·_-:. 

- .. -........ _. -~.. '"-·- - .·-
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DEPARTMENT OF TRANSP011TATION 
FEDERAL HIGHWAY ADMINISTRATIOtl'--- • _/ 

• 

REGION ONE V 
25 Scotch Road - 2nd Floor 
Trenton, New Jerr.cy oSG28 
February 26, 1975 

IN R£PLY REFER TO: 

. 01-34 

:VJ.r. Hanuel Cc.rbc.llo 
Deputy Co:mmissioner of Transportation .. 
New Jersey Department of Transportation . . . 

Trenton, New Jersey 

Dear Deputy CoTOI!'lissioner Carballo: 

This is in response to your February 21 letter in vrhich you pose some 
questions regarding the recent releas~ of an additional $2 billion of 
obligational .authority . 

. ·1. Question - Does the President's action indicate any relaxation 
or intent to revise reeulations issued pursuant to the National 
Environmental Protection Act in a manner "'·Thich "'·rill allow projects 
in Ne"Yr Jersey to proceed at a faster pace? 

Answer - The regulations issued to implement the National 
Environmental Policy Act have not been relaxed nor am I a1-rare 
of any intent to do so. l'Joreover, unless NEPA itself is revised 
by the. Congress I cannot conceive of any ad.ministrati ve relief 
within th~ confines of NEPA that would allow major projects in 
New Jersey to procee_d ·at a faster pace • 

. 2. Question - If the onlv criteria for approval by the Federal Highvray 
Administration of projects is the project's ability to generate 
emptoyment in the area of unemployment and our ability to get it 
to contract quickly, we have $248 million in projects designed 
which are essentially complete, and right of way, where necessary, 
has been acquired. Are other criteria suspended or waived? 

Ms,•er - The ability of a project to generate employment is not the 
only criterion upon which approval by the Federal Highway Admiriistra
·tion is based. In addition~ all normal project requirements must 

... 
·1 
... 

·;.• 
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be met. No criteria have been suspended or waived. . . 
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3. QueGtion - D,:,cs the impounu.mcnt rclensc menn that funds can be 

used acro~s systems other thcur as i.s presently provided by statute? 
. . 

Ans,·rer - The impoundment release docs not provide any more 
flexibility in the use of Federal-aid funds other than is presently 
provided by ::;tntute. For example funds authorized by the.Con~rcss 
for e.x""Pendi ture on the Federa.l-nid secom1ary system may not be used 
on the primary systQ.Tn except to the extent that a _limited amount 
of fund~ may be trru1sferred between classes of funds, subject to 
approval by the Federal lliglmay Administrator, .as is provided for 
in existing law (re: Section 104 of Title 23). 

4.. Question - In the case of a transfer of higln·ray funds to public 
transportation projects, does the 45-day constraint still apply 
and does the acquisition of buses or rolling stock constitute 
"construction"? 

Ansvrer - The acquisition of buses or rolling stock does constitute 
construction. However, the manner ~n vrhlch the 45-day constraint 
applies to public transportation projects has pot been clearly 
established. In part this is due to the complexity of intesrating 
both F1IHA and UI-iTA procedures, the timing of purchase orders in 
relation to obligation .of funds, and the timing of the "constructi0l1 11 

of buses or rol)ing stock in.relation to initiation of the purchase 
order. · For your planning purposes I 'muld not rule out the- possibility 
of public transportation projects being elicible for funding, not
withstanding the 45-da~· constraint. Then if the Department wishes to 
propose a specific project for which the above time parameters can 
be identified or reasonably estimated lie will provide a more definitive 
answer to your question. · 

5. Question- Notwithstanding the effect of the· release of obligational 
authority and its recall by Federal Highlmy Administration into a 
central national "pool," is New Jersey correct in assuming that the 
Sta~e could only actually lose Federal funds appropriated to it by 
the 11lapsation" provisions of Title 23? 

Answer - Within the context of your question, you are correct in 
assuming that the only way New Jersey could actually lose Federal 
funds apportioned to it is by the 11lapsation 11 provisions of 'l'itle 23. 
. . 

In addit"ion to the five numbered questions above, you have asked for 
"confirmation of your understanding that \Te are "prepared to revie,., certain 
projects for inclusion f.or Federal-aid funding which previously would have 
been considered maintenance" projects. As you know, the Congress has 
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authorized Federal-aid ftmtb for conBt.ructj on lmt none for m~t-tnt(.'JHmcc. 
Hmwver, it :i.s not ahn:.yB clear \·rhetlw:r a :nropo~'ccl r•ro,jcct shou1cl lx~ 
classl:licd as reconBt:ruction or cJ ncsificd as r:m:iJJtenanct!. Jn the 
pn.~!~ t!ie Cl:i.Gtind.·:_on JJa~l not been of ll"UCh ~;i.r~n:i ''iC(il'lCP becC:.1.1'~C: J:c.1 
Jer:;C,\', as other st.utc~>, ha:-; ah:a;>tD lmd n h:i r;hiray prot::rr:•n J.nrcc Cl~O<.·c;h 

to utilize all ava:tlf.1hle Fe(lcrn.l fundh!C for rrc\icci..s c1cnrJ? cLt':~ci fic.:~1 

as J:ecollstruct:ion or ne1r com;truction. l3ut nu .. ; the corll.li !!t-it ion of 
President Ford's release of e.dtlitional obligationa1 au:thorit;-)', '"h:!.ch 
has the effect of cl!Ctl1Gil1f, the th;inc; of the o.vcciJabil:l t:-r of fundr_: 
authoriz.ed hy ConsreGB, plur: the difficult:: of a(ivanc:ing nnr pro.jc(~(;s 
to tlw construction stnce at &n earJ.y date, has Wtde trtc distinc:tion 
behrccn maintcn.:-,nee and construction more f_;igni1'ictmt. 

As a r;encral rule, resurfacinc; projects H:Jj_ch involve 1 1/2 :incbc:; or 
more of surface thicl~ncss are elic;H1le for Fcc1ernl parti cipat:Lon 
providcu the :rre~;eFI-; traffic and that forecast to Pf3C the llighw<·-:·" pro~jcct 
durinr; tbc probable life of tbe rcsurfacinc~. com·se cnn be adequate] :r 
accowmodateci by the basic higln-ray :i.n place. Hov:ever, if the bard.c 
hiu;h\Ia;t in plaee cannot adequately handle. the p:r·ercnt and forL:cc~:_;t 

traffic, then the proposed project must also- include work to correct 
deficiencies in geometries, struct11ral adequacy, drainage and otbc~:r 

features if the pro~ject is to be ap::_:n~oved as a Fecteral"·a:i.d pro~ject. 

Using the f:.hove criteria I believe your staff ,.d,j_l be able to pro})r:Orly 
classify the ve.st majority of pro,iccts f~S to 'l·:"hef:her the;.r are mairrt.em•.nce 
or reconstruction but ,.;e arc nevertheless p:ccpared to revievr any propo~-;ed 
project to det<~rm:i.ne if it :i.s eligible for Federal funcline. 

Sincerely, 

,_L) \ '·/. ;·· . 
_....<:.:\ .. "-··- (" ,· \:.<-.: .. --~~ ., d-

1/ • \ . '.: 

\ -John J. Kessler, Jr, 
Division Engineer 
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U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

FEDE11AL HIGHWAY ·ADMINISTRATI0N 
., 

~-----------------------------------------~------------~ SiJBJECL-: .· Fcderal::Aid.·Highl'lay:··Program~. ·.. - FHWA.~9TICE 
ho·,;c.·:c;-~ ::.-.Qbligati:ons~ -c.:..EY. 1.9IS · .. :- :. -~ ·:··:-· ~.~:: :· N4520:.:26.: . : 
classi:!:!or~~ :--.:; :!"eco:~ :::-, ~·l:~"..;::. c.:. ·.: ~ ~: ~"~·:::. ::-·:.:: :: · ~--:- ~ :' ".. :·.- · March :.) 0 , J 9 7 5 
J:'B.S""~. ·""!!·:• C"~.::-v::!':'\.::'2"~~ ·!·::"' ;""''": ·!~r-:-:-~ ':'r· :-·~~~·.' ~ .. ...:,. ..... :~ ......... ~ · · .. ,.. -t> 

.Jerst·::. c..~ c.:~-:>:·:·· r-.:.~:.· .. c.~~ ~~:--~. [ .. _:.::-~---~ :~~-~~ ~ .. . :-__ -- __ ·· . . ..:..~ ..... -·.: ~~~ :-·. ·: 
-~c ~~:.:il:.:::'- L~. ;... ... :t.:~:.c..·'"·:_~ ~:--:·::·;;_~ ~~·~·;··.-:::·.-: :·:,~-- ::~ ... .:. ·:~-::: :.:~':.~~:·~ --· ~~:.-. . ·.~::.··~.'-.;·:: 
1-f.s :!P-URPOSE~·-- .To~ pro..vide . .-revised fnst r:uc t ions~ =r.e_la tive to 
Pre~J'ie=---ob 1 iga:t i·on. o·f Eederal~ai:d .highl.z.ay: . .funds .. :dur:ing :.~: _ 
;ha~ ~tY~l:9'1S;.-: :.: ~ ... ?:::-:<: -::> -:.:~:- - ~~ -.:·:: ::··:.:_~_.:·:~-:~-:~-- ::: .::.·.::·.-. 
·.:~:.:!-_;-~~~~=.:s:: ·::::: C:::;:·"·..;~.:=~ :.:.:..::. ~~-C- c.~::::-~-~--.. ··~~ :.. ... -.::,"':::_~- ;::.-·.- --::-:: .. -:- ·r~:--... : 
z~.:. "-BACKGROUND .. ~. FHWA- Not ice -l':J~-5 2_Q_. n> :cia ted_ .July ::.~~-,~:,1- ~? 4. 
~~-.,~eleased:.~S:-..¢.;.6 .billion ·of .. Federal:-:a-id:h:iglnvay funds on a 
· State-by-State basis for obligation in FY 1975 effective 
As GJnly.::·l~ ~1914 .: ·-'Through -J.anua-ry -.-31:,- 197-5 ;··-approximatety
nort=$2~&:--bilt·ion: had:been ohl-igated: and:$2:.(} billion:. 
-:o~c·.temai.t1ed<unobl iga ted. ~-:-On· Eehrua ry:-11-, -_19 7-5, President Ford 
-:du!·~r-el·eased· an. additionaL $:2.:.·0~ hillion··oL Eederal:-aid __ · 
,ac.c(.h-i-gh1vay .funds :for. ahligation. in~FY :1975.~. This.c:r.elease 
·n: t::Y.ais:ed ·- th·e total progr<+m -1 ev.el :'fo.r: fY-: :197 5_ .front:· .the 
·tra:nlitially.::·estahlished·. $4:.-.6~_billion :.leY.el to $6 • 6: -billion. 
·ilef'icie:-~:::~:: :.:-. £.CS~:.:.·-.. -;:. ::.::. ~:: ... ·:..:.~~~.~~c .. :.. c.:.::c-s:.::::~··. f.:: .. ~:.=·.:··"·:· £:" .. :.. c::·.:.~· 
3fec.:~BJEGT IV-E.:. :::::A -:primar.y goal: o£.-;:;the~ acteler:ate:d: fY: ,19-7 5 

. Federal-~id ~ighway pro~ram is to carry out the President's 
, Usira-bj:e--e t-i ve: of: ·geliera'ting: .employmen~t::. ·.- ~ ::...::.. -~: ~:::.-:..s :.;.. ::::-:·~::-·:::::·::...;· 
~~assi:·::. -~:-~f , ... c:.s~, r.-:~'"~c:::.-:~: c.:' ::~·c.-'".:'~.2-:s ~~ -::.c 1-::r!'=::.t~2:: ::::~~· :::._;--e·. ~:r_::..i:·~-:~::::.::·~~ 

4Qr !6tJI:DEL'INES- ::,_-. ·.:,::. ~::-~ ;·::::·-.-~~·:.::-.~::...e::£ ~-:.-ep:;.:::·::-: -~~ ~~-t::e•:· a;.:.- ~~=::::::~::. 
. p.,..o ... , e ,., - - <'". ( • .:... -· /'- .,...._ •• • .,... r .. · _... .! - .:. e € .... ! - -~ ·,. .. . ....£· ..... -::-. . ;. .=: ...... - ~- • ..:··~ .. ,.... ;,..";,.: -~- ·~ ... ~- ..... . • . · .. 

• .... "" \..."'" v .... \,... ........ -- ···---.... ......... - .... ..t...... ..:..:.:..c...:. ""~'"c .J..O... .;. c~-- ...:._ ..:. \.4-..i."'--·;L. 

-~- a~ Not less than 80 percent of the obligations for new 

~.1 •. 

........ 

projects and additionalU'lo.:rk.:on existing projects 
(identified on Forms ~R-37-by-a Februar~ 1975 or 
subsequent month date in..._¢ols. 21'~-2~ o~/ car:d 6) shall. 
be for construction (j.Zen-tif:led on'· Forms P~-37 by_ '"ork 
class 3 or 6 for all \fund-s·. plus-~~w:oxk t1ass spr? 

. . . . ·- .......... . 

Forest Highway funds in::t.<iLc:4Z.:·.g£-.~ard 5) .for· which 
·bids shall be opened or work started withiri 45 days 
after obligation of the funds for construction. 

, , ... · Where possible, priority should be given to projects 
.in areas of particularly high unemployment, projects 
~o close gaps'in the Interstate System, safety 

... :.·-.:,:-t· ._.improvement projects,' and potential transit substitution 
. ·. ~-:,., .pr~jccts in urbanized areas. · 

b~ Railroad-highway grade crossing saf~ty improvements 
: :· · · undertaken by railroad force account may be approved 
. . 

provided the railroad can establish-to the satisfac
-~;tion of the State and Division Engineer that (1) the 

• ·DISTRIBUTION: 
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major items of \varning device material, if not avail
able from·stock, will be ordered fro~ material 
supplici·s within the foregoing mentioned 45-day period 
and (2) upon availability of the materials, the actual 
installation work will proceed expeditiously. 

• . . 
c. Mass transit projects--23 U.S.C. 103{e)(4), 142(a)(2) 

and (c)--should be submitted provided there is reason
able assurance that employment-generating action (firm 
orders for buses, etc.) will be taken within 45 days 
after UMTA approval 'Of the project. 

d. Division Engineers should approve the conversion of 
ACI or bond projects or advance of stage 1 authoriza
tions for preliminary engineering or right-of-way to 
obligated status where such actions contribute to the 
overall Presidential objective of generating employ
ment. In this connection, reimbursement for work 
done on such .pro~ects should provide the State with 
matching funds required·to·permit them tv proceed with 
other employment-generating projects. Requests for 
wajver of the 3-year payout control on converted 
EACI or E bond projects wi~l be corisidered on an 
~ndividual basis by the Washington office. Such 
requests ~hould be submitted through the regional 
office to the Program Analysis Division and should 
specify the project.number and esti~ated payment in 
FY 1975 if the waiver is granted. .Justification for 
approval of the waiver should also be provided . 

e. Variation from the 45-day requirement or the 80 percent 
standard may be requested through the regional office 
where such variation will further the Presidential 
objective of generating employment. 

OBLIGATION AUTHORITY AVAILABLE TO STATES 
' ~- :.· ... .. : : 

a. To assure maximum utilization of the approximately 
$4.0 billion remaining available for obligation in 
FY 1975 (includes remaining balances of authority · 
previously distributed to States, plus the additional 
amount·rcleascd by the President) fiscal control will 
be exercised by the Washington office. Division Engi
neers arc authorized to approve projects financed . 
.from funds in any of the categories shown in Exhibit A 
in any ·state, unrestrained except by the State's 
unobligated balance of apportioned or allocated funds 
in the categories an-d by the requirement that projects 
so approved be within the guidelines established to 
achieve the national objectives. This includes unobligated 
balances of funds authorized for FY 1976. 

• 
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b •. All obligation authority for projects requiring 
approval by the Urbatl Mass Transportation Adminis tra
tion (i.e., Interstate and urban system substitution 
projec~s under ·23 U.S.C. 103{c)(4)'and 142(c) and 
urban system projects under 142(a}(2)) will be 
reserved by the Washington office. Concurrent with 
the submission of the projects to the Washington '··., 

·' :office, Program Analysis Division, for referral to 
UMTA, the Division Engineer shall advise the Program 
Ana1ysis'Divtsion, through the regional office, of 
the project number(s) arid amount of apportioned funds 
program~d (step 3) for such projects. 

6. REPORTING OF OBLIGATIONS 

a. 
·.' . ·, ... ' 

Beginning March 14, 1975, Division Engineers arc to 
report total obligations from July 1, 1974, to dat~ 
for the c~tegories of funds listed in attached 
Exhibit A. The tottil reported should reflect increasis 
and decreases during FY 1975 in obligations of the 
~funds involved (new work, overruns, underruns, etc.). 
Division office reports should be submitted to regional 
offices by close o~ business each Friday. 

b. Regional offices ar~ to relay the reports of the 
division offices in their region no later than the 
start of business o~ the following Monday. The reports 

- · shou~d be submitted to the Washington office, Program· 
:- ---Analysis Division, via facsimile transmission in the 

fol~owing format: (dollars in thousands) 

:: ~ .. : ~ --~egion Total 

.. ·Obligations 
------~·-·-· July 1, 1974 

State to (date) 

~ · t~::·bivision and regi6~al office-procedures should be 
.·designed to provide current ~ata since it is antici

·--- · ~ated that more frequent reporting (up to daily) will 
be required as the fiscal year progresses. 

d. The Washington office will·fu~nish a weekly report 
showing progress in utilizing the total $6.6 billion 
available for obligation in . .I:Y _1_97_S. The report will 

~-:..- .... :_bd7 :ser~~- .. to. each ~eg~9_na_!_~-f.~!.~~-for appropriate 
1Ssem1nat1on. 
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7. REPORTING OF E~IPLOYMENT . ' I 

Special 6mployment ~ep6rts will be required from con-
·tractors having Federal-aid highway construction contracts 
awarded before June 30,· 1975. Contractors normal book
keeping operations should enable them to supply the data 
that will·be requested and no special preparations should 
be necessary. Reporting procedures and instructions 
will be furnished soon under a supplemental FHWA Notice. 

Norbert T. Tiemann . ,. 
!'' •• Federal Highway Administrator 

Attachment 

..-. 

----------· 

' ...._ 

' . . . 
.... %·: •• 

! . 

. : I. 

. ::-
.I , ' • ~.' I • 

:: ·.'. ::. 
·: .. ' i . :-. ~ < i ~ '·· _. .. · ~! < . _., 

',; ·. ; ' 

t •.•• 
' . . -. ~ ;, ' . ·· .... 

~ : . ~ ~ :.. : _: ' ; .. _ . ~ i 
· . .: .. . 

.' '--~ ~ ·: ;,> · .. 

;,· .. :· :· 

,._ ... 

. ·• ·. :. . ... ,· 

-- . 

.· 

l.". -~ .. -.· ... ( -

:I.,:· .. :._ .. ;- ··. 
~~~or-·~:~-

·..-·-" '...-:.;.. . ,' 

r· •• · 

"" ...... -. 
! ', .. :-- .· 

~- - .... 

.... ~ -: ~--

~. . ' i. 

I' 

'. 

• • 

.. _ ... 

.. ' . . . ·. ~ .. ·;.· 

(> ... t··. ''· 
·'. 't.- ;! 

. .·· .· 
" .. 

·-· .. 

.. 

~ . -~- . . 

.• ·. :.·· .. • 

. . ~: ~ . 

.. •' . -... 

. ' . , .. -~: ~ : : . i. . 4 ! ~ ....• ' 

:: . ; ... 
..;. . : '·· .~ 

. ; -
.• i 

,.,: ·. 

:- - ~ . 
• • • ~-! ' 

....... - ; - . ~"'-

. ·:· . .... " .. ' 

.. _, 
. \ . . ~ 

~ .. .-. .. _.., . 

•'. ··.-· 

-.· .... 

~. . ~ . . . . . . . . . : . · .. ·-; ·: . -:. -. . _,.. "; · ..... ; ; 

. -· ... - -.... .. - -. . : : .......... - -

.:: I 

. .. 
...; .. -- .. . -.-- .... . ~. . ! l •·. :• . .... .. 

. 
. - ..... - ... 

17 X 

·. ·: ...... 
.. ..... 
. ·.·· -. :.·.-· 

'· ..... 

.. . . . 

•I 

()·. 
' . 

• . 

: . . 

Q ' . 
' 

I 

l 
i 

\ 
I 

• i 

I 
·I 

.. ,, 
.'i ;, 

~ I 
,. il 

·I ~ I i 
)il' 

~ : ' 

~ 'I 
< I 
: i 
• . I 
:.. 'I 

-~ . ' • I 

i
\ 



r· 
'f 

' ~ ; 
~ . 
'(~ 
. t:J;/ 

T:XHII3IT A 

CATEGORIES OF FUNDS CCVERED BY 
FY 1975 OBLIGATION AUTHORITY 

(Includes all Unobligated Balances of Funds Apportioned 
or Allocated for ·py 1976 and Prior Fiscal Years) 

Interstate 
Primary 
Secondary 
Rural Primary 
Rural Secondary 
Priority Primary 
Urban Extension 

. . 
'" 

Urban System attributable 
Urban System - not attributable 
TOPICS 
Metropolitan Planning 
HPR 
Economic Growth Center 
Rail-Highway Crossings 
Rail-High~ay Crossings 
High Hazard Locations 

Development Highways 
Protective Devices 

- Other Hazards 

·Elimination of Roadside Obstacles 
Safer Roads Demonstration Program 
Alaskan Assistance 
Bridge Replacement 
Pavement Marking 
Urban High Density 
Forest Highways 
Off-System Roads (not available pending issuance of instructions) 

Note 1--Form PR-370, Advice of Funds Available for Obligation, 
provides public lands, bri~ges on dams and emergency 
relief funds. Obligations of public lands and 
bridges on dams funds will be included in obligation 
rcport.prescribed by paragraph 6 of this Noiice. 
Obligations of emergency relief funds will not be 
'included in the· report. 

Note ·2--The Washington office will report obligations for 
non-highway mass transit projects approved by UMTA. 

·Field offices will be advised ~f the appropriate 
recording. 
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• Fund 

Priority Primary 
Routes 

National Sceni.c 
Req·eational llizTn.;ay 

High U.azardLocations 

Roadside Obstacles 

Forest lliglmays 

- \ Landscapwg and 
Scenic Enhancement 

Highway Safety Pro
grams 

Safer Roads Demon
stration Program 

.. 

Fnctors ---
Area 
Rural /.rca 

Populntion 
Intercity Hnil nnd 

Rural Delivery 
Route Hilcnge 

Urban~:*~opula t ion 

Relative Needs 

Total Populat~on 
Public Road 

l1ilcage 

Total Population 
Public n.ond 

Mileage 

Area of :Forests 
Value of ·Forests 

F"cdcral-aid 
Apportionments 

Total Population 
Public Road 

Mileage 

Total Population 
Public Road 

l-tileage 

1/6 
1/6' 

1/6 

1/2 

1 

3/4 
1/4 

3/4 
l/4 

1/2' 
1/2 

. 1 

3/4 
1/4 

3/4 
1/4 

* Denotes ~ppropriate section in Title 23, ~.S.C • .. 
** Places of 5,000 or more persons 

Hinhlllm ___ .,.,_ ... 
Stntllt·e* 

147 (u) 

148(d) 

152(d) !.:t percent 

153(d) !.:t percent 

202 (a) 

319(b) 

402(c) ~ percent: 

405 (c) ~ percent 

*** Apportionment factors are contained in the repor~, ''A Revised Estimate of the 
Cost of Completing the National System of Interstate and Defense Bigln·:ays", 
submitted to Congress as stated in 23 U.S.C. 104(b)(S). 

**** Usually places of 50,000 or more persons--See 23 U.S.C. 101 for definition 
of "Urbanized area." 
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Apportionre~nt Formulas 

Formulas for apportioning authorized sums for certain classes of Federal-aid 

higln·.'nys arc specified b}• statute. 'rhcse are sho\m bclm-1. 

Fund 

Primary System 

·secon~ary System 

Urban Extensions of 
the Primary and 
Secondary Systems 

Interstate System 

Urban System 

Urban Planning Funds 

Railway-diglnoJay 
Crossings .. 

• 
Factors 

Area 
Rural Area 

Population 
Intercity llail and 

Rural Delivery 
Ro·1 te Uilcagc 

"Area 
·Rural Area 

Population 
Intercity Mail and 

Rural Delivery . 
Route Hilcnge 

Urbnn**Population 

Relative Ycdcral · 
s~are of Cost to 
Complete the 
Systcm**•'t 

Urban**Population 

Urbanized**** 
Population 

Area 
Rural Area 

Population 
Intercity Hail and 

Rural Delivery 
Route Hileagc 

Urban**Population 

Minimum ----\,'eight Statute* Appor tio1mcn t 

1/3 
1/3 

104(b)(l). ~percent 

1/3 

1/3: .104 (b) (2) 
1/3 

1/3 

1 

. : 

1 

1 

1 

1/6 
1/6 

1/6 

1/2 

20 X· 

104 (b)(3) 

lOl1 (b) (5) 

.... '·. 

10l•(b) (6) 

104 (f) (2) 

Sec. 203(d) 
of the 1973 
llighHay Act 

. 

(except for D.C.) 
but not less than 
the amount received· 
in FY 1973 (as speci
fied in section 
11l(b) of the 1973 

.· UiglnoJay Act) 

~ percent 
.. (except for D.C.) 

~ percent 
(as specified in 
section 104(b) and 
the 1973 Higln-my Act) 

. . 
~ percent 

~ perc~nt 
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Ml,llions of Dollars 
...... ...... tv 

Ol 0 Ol 0 
0 0 0 0 

.,....,...,..!'1:--L...~-!L........:l-..,~~J--

.1:------ 108.7 
,, 
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l'JSCATA WAY - :lliddlc~rx 

County's ~;;c0.(0~ plans for i;!rl· 
ton !load were ~rrappcd la~t 

. nir.ht when the township co11~ril 
vrtoc<l a prnpo~;,J to <lil'i<lo and 

. widen tho road through tho 
town~hip. . 

I n a compromise hd ween 
! Democrats ~nd Hrpuhliran.<, 

the council unnnimously nr.rccd 
to a rc•olution demanding that 

, tho county improrc only Ill< cx
l~tin1, rir.ht ·or way without 
chr1n!~in~ the ''rxi~tin~ rharac· 
tcr" o! !.1nd alon~ the road. 

The rc.;olut ion also calls for 
, council wto p011er o1·cr any 
·rlan ~uhmittcd hy Uic coun'.y. 
' . The county's cn~inccring de· 
~~arl_mcnt s!:nt_~soo.ooo del'~loi":'.: 

1 n r. plans which Included 
Hr.:-ral juLh~ndlc·s and acqttisi· 
tion of rrorcrty to 11idrn rond 
dirido the road. 

])(·c;m~c fC'tk·r~'ll mrn<·y wou!d 
hare hcen med in tho pr_ojrct, 
the council h;1rl nto power 
o\'er the l'lans. The l9i3 eotmcil 
approrcd them. 

County officials mninloin the 
!rdcrnl r.o,·ernment will not 
fund the project unless it i; 
di\·irird with :t mrdian. 

In February, almo;t 2,0)J sir.
natures clpcrsoas oppo;cd to the 
project wcro prec;er.ted lo the 
council. Led hy h·cshm:m cmm
rilman lra L:mrl:l\1, the Hrpub
liran minority oppo<d the 
county's plans through sc\'cral 
6tormy meetings .. ··. . ·. ' .. , · .. 

- Lnnd.ou at first rcicclrd ·tho 
compromise rcsolul ion oflcrrcl 
lilsl nir,ht hy Democratic coun. 
cihnan Stcphtn Hilr.. Th~ l\itz 
rr~.(l~lllion HC'm~d unrlr.1r. anrl 
Landon daimcd it did not do 
awav \•,ilh the IO!II'·Iane road 
plm;, :·· ' 

"I want it pbinly !:nown to 
the pro~lc.that this rlocs not do 
away with the four-bnc road," 
Landau said. · 

J>i:r. said his amendment did 
,,woy with the ju~handles in tho 
!•Ian .orHI disallowed all)' land 
acC"{ui~iti(ln hy thr. county. As 
far as making the road four 
lanes wide, he said the rc;olu
lion "allows the county to· usa 
,o\10<1 engineering judgement at 

·-the , apr;,opriato plnce in the 
roaobcd. . 

The council went into private 
·~ession and emerged wi•h two 

. a::mer:drr'!(_)nts to Ritz.' rcs'l1.ution 
that satisfied both parties. Tho 
amendments demanded "ex-

.· elusion of plans which wou'rl 
change or modify the existing 
cbaraclcr of the area adjacent 
to Stell on· Hoad" and gave the 
council the right to ve'.~ any 
Jut me· co\lOcil plans !or the 

·road. , --
The lUtz aii1Endment already 

called lor curbs and sidewalks 
•'On both si<lcs of the road, SC\'· 

era! trallic lights and e!ectronie 
control or the traffic signals by 
local fire departments. 

Though Landau cloimed Rit~ 
was trying to upsta~o him, h~ 
said he was satisi1Cd with 11tc 
compromise resolution. "It 
means tho four-lano divided 
road Is dead," he said. "\\'a 
didn't sell out to anybody." . 

Ritz said his major concem 
· was \\ith improving the road. 

"I'm not in favor of killing that 
road." he said. "~ly God, it's a 
death trap. I'm in favor of im
pro\iitg the road with county, 
atatc or federal funds. 

Robert Costello, a hom~owner 
\\'ho had led the -pelitioa drh·e, 
aald he was satisfied wi'b the 
resolution as passed. "Now it's · 
lime to bring It to the freeilo~-d • ( 
ers and tell them to get out 

. there and Improve it." . 
•--a-:-
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